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HAGUE, SAHADY & CO., P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLICACCOUNTANTS
126 President Ave

Fall River; M ‘

TEL.(508):

FAX {508) 6755

Independent Auditors’ Report

Honorable Mayor and Members
of the City Council

City of New Bedford

New Bedford, Massachusetts

‘We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component units, each major find, and the aggregate remaining fund information ofthe City of New
Bedford, Massachusetts, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2007, which collectively comprise the City’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of New
Bedford’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted cur audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statemenits are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

The City of New Bedford, Massachusetts has not reconciled the general ledger cash and investment account balances
to the total bank accounts held at various financial institutions as of June 30, 2007, Cash in the bank as reported in the
financial statements totals $66.6 million compared with the Cash in the Bank as reported in the summary of all bank
statements, after considering unpresented deposits and checks which totals $65.4 million, a difference of $1.2 million.
As a result, we were unable to obtain assurance that all the transactions processed by the City of New Bedford,
Massachuseits during the year are accurately reflected in the financial statements.

In our opinion, except for the existence of the limitation on the scope of work as described in the qualification paragraph
above, and the effect of such adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to be necessary had the limitation not
existed, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position
of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of New Bedford, Massachusetts, as of June 30, 2007, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a separate report dated December 7, 2007 on
our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 13 and the schedule of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances - budgetary basis on pages 68 through 75 and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements, but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentatlon of the reguired supplementary information. However, we did
not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
City of New Bedford’s basic financial statements. The supplementary statements and schedules on pages 79 through
104 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
supplementary statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The schedule of funding progress and employers® contributions on pages 76 through 78
have not ben subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly,
we express no opinion on them,

December 7, 2007



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

Year Ended June 30, 2007

The management of the City of New Bedford, Massachusetts (City), offers readers of the City’s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 and
2006, We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information found
within the body of the audit.

FINANCIAL Highlights:

. The assets of the City exceeded liabilities at June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively, by $145,047,482
and $105,174,584. Of this amount, $98,383,619 represents unrestricted net assets.

. The City’s total net assets increased by $39,872,898.

° As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $19,560,047. As of June 30, 2006 ending fund balances for governmental finds
were $(17,288,280). :

L At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $26,750,700

{10.1 percent) of total general fund expenditures.

. The City’s total long term debt increased by $7,349,913 from $213,421,269 to $220,771,182 during
the current fiscal year. The key factor in this increase is that the City is incurred new debt totaling
$17,357,300 and pay downs were made totaling $10,007,387.

L The City considered its water and airport activities to be business-type in nature beginning in 2006.
The business-type activities increased the City’s net assets by $6,680,334.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements. The City’s
basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in
addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers
with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between
the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether
the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2007

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed during the most recent fiscal
year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless
of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will
only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods, (i.e., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

The government-wide financial statements of the City are divided into three categories:

L] Governmental activities — Governmental activities of the City such as general government, public
works, public safety, education, community and economic development, and culture and recreation
are reported here. Property taxes, state aid, local fees and charges finance most of these activities.

L] Business-type activities - Business-type activities of the City such as water and airport are reported
here. Charges for services finance most of these activities.

L Component units — The government-wide financial statements not only include the governmental and
business-type activities (known as the primary government) but also legally separate entities. There
are five legally separate component unit entities included in this report, which are the Greater New
Bedford Regional Refuse Management District, the Harbor Development Corporation, Department
of Workforce Development Administration (New Directions}, the New Bedford Redevelopment
Authority and The New Bedford Contributory Retirement System.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 14 through 17 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City
can be divided into three categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds for the City consist
of the pension trust fund, the private purpose trust funds and the agency funds. The proprietary funds for the City is the
water and airport and internal service or medical claims trust funds. All other activities of the City are included in the
governmental funds.

Governmental funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, government fund financial statements focus on rear-ferm inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as
well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
the evaluation of a government’s near term financing requirements.



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2007

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful
to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact
ofthe government’s near term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate the comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains many governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance
sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the general
fund, wastewater fund and stabilization fund which are considered major funds. Data from all of the other governmental
funds, which are considered non-major funds, are combined into a single aggregated presentation. Individual fund data
for these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements, which are not required but are
supplementary information,

The City adopts an annual budget for its general and wastewater funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been
provided to demonstrate compliance with those budgets.

The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 18 through 19 of this report. The budgetary
statements can be found on pages 68 through 70 and 73 of this report.

Proprietary funds: The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report
the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements, The City uses
enterprise funds to account for its water and airport operations. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to
accumulate and allocate costs internally among various functions. The City uses internal services funds to account for
the purchasing of supplies, medical and life insurance. Because these services predominantly benefit governmenta! rather
than business-type functions, they have been included within govermmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The accrual basis of accounting is used for the proprietary fund.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.
The proprietary fund financial statements provide information for the enterprise fund consisting of the water and airport
operations as well as the internal service fund which is considered a major funds.

The City adopts an annual budget for its water and airport funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided
to demonstrate compliance with those budgets.

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 22 through 25 of this report. The budgetary statements
can be found on pages 71 through 72 of this report.

Fiduciary funds: Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its employees’ pension plan. It is also responsible for other assets
that because of a trust arrangement can be used only for the trust beneficiaries and the agency fund. The City is
responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes. All of the City’s
fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net assets and a statement of changes in fiduciary net
assets. These activities are excluded from the City’s governmental-wide financial statements because the City cannot
use these assets to finance its operations. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is the accrual basis of accounting.
The fiduciary funds financial statements can be found on pages 26 through 27 of this report.



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MDé&A) (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided
in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 28 through 67 of this
report.

Other information: In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information concerning all legally adopted budgets. The City appropriates an annual appropriation budget for the general,
water, airport and wastewater funds. Budgetary comparison schedules are presented to demonstrate compliance with the budget on pages
68 through 75.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earliet, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of the City, assets
- exceeded liabilities by $145,047,482 as of June 30, 2007 and $105,174,584 as of June 30, 2006.

The largest portion of the City’s net assets reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land and improvements, buildings and
improvements, vehicles, furniture and equipment and construction in progress, etc.) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that
is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to its residents; consequently, these assets are nor available for
future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.

The City’s financial position is the product of several financial transactions including the net results of activities, the acquisition and
payment of debt, the acquisition and disposal of capital assets, and the depreciation of capital assets.

Net Assets for the period ending June 30, 2007 and June 30, 2006 (Government-wide level)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities ** Total **
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Assets;
Current and other assets  § 136,853,492 $146,210,983 § 2,691,103 £ 2,082,778  $139,544,595 § 148,293,761
Capital assets 287,677,278 278,059,832 48.252,941 43,217,611 335,930,219 321,277,443

Total Assets $424.530,770 $424.270.815 § 50944044 $ 45300389 $475474.814 §469.571,204
Liabilities: o
Current liabilities $109,594,367 $ 56,225,060 $ 1,448,597 § 767,473 $111,042964 $ 56,992,533
Long-term liabilities 207,625,253 293.927.169 11,759,115 13,476,918 219,384,368 307,404,087

Total Liabilities $317.219,620 § 350,152,229  § 13,207,712 $ 14244391  $330427,332  § 364,396,620

Net Assets;
Investment in capital

assets (net of debt) $ 29,324,454  $( 3,314,683) $ 35,779,877 $ 29,965,904 $ 65,104,331 $ 26,651,221
Restricted ( 18,712,420) 17,520,895 271,952 ( 20,271)  ( 18,440,468) 17,500,624
Unreserved 96,699,116 59.912,374 1,684,503 1,110,365 98,383.619 61,022,739

Total Net Assets $ 107,311,150 §$ 74,118,586 § 37.736,332 § 31,055,998  § 145,047,482 § 105,174,584

*k Total net assets for fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 have been restated - refer to restatement note (pages 66-67) in the financial
statements for the explanation.



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2007
An additional portion of the City’s net assets $(1 8,440,468) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may

be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets $98,383,619 may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors.

The strength of the City is dependent upon the willingness of the citizenry to pay their bills when they are due, and the diligence of the Tax
Collector to ensure that everyone complies with such dealings. As of June 30, 2007 and June 30, 2006 cash and investments consisted of
$66,569,695 and $59,672,406 respeptively.

At the end of fiscal years 2007 and 2006, the City is not able to report positive balances in all three categories of net assets for its
governmental activities. For years ended 2007 and 2006 the City is not able to report positive balances in all three categories of net assets
for its business-type activities. '

The City’s net assets for its governmental funds increased during the current fiscal year, due primarily to earning revenues in excess of
expenditures and the receipt of $17 million in bond proceeds. Net assets for business-type activities increased due to revenue earned in
excess of expenditures.

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City’s net assets by $33,192,564 for fiscal year ended June 30, 2007,

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City’s net assets by $6,680,334 for 2007,

Key elements of these increases/(decreases) are documented on the following page:

Changes in Net Assets for the period ending June 30, 2007 and June 30, 2006 (Government-wide level)

Governmental Activities ** Business-Type Activities ** Total **
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for service $ 36,929,132 § 34,953,972 § 8,283,560 $ 7,879,651 § 45212,692 § 42,833,623
Operating grants &

confributions 68,278,767 62,918,417 200,076 202,766 68,478,843 63,121,183
Capital grants &
contributions 39,030,586 39,581,303 395,600 39,425,586 39,581,303
General revenues:
Property taxes 79,127,415 74,363,939 79,127,415 74,363,939
Motor vehicle excise 5,753,488 6,481,040 5,753,488 6,481,040
Tax liens fines &
other 3,984,212 4,270,828 3,984,212 4,270,828
Intergovernmental 136,047,415 128,890,454 136,047,415 128,890,454
Earnings on investments 2,878,895 3,016,169 2,878,895 3,016,169
Other _ 2,470,505 1,991.368 84,635 59,175 2,555,140 2,050,543
Total revenues 374,500,415 356.467.490 8,963,271 8,141,592 383.463.686 364,609,082




CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Changes in Net Assets for the period ending June 30, 2007 and June 30, 2006 (Government-wide level)

Governmental Activities ** Business-Type Activities ** Total **
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Expenses:
General government 8,779,015 6,475,299 8,779,015 6,475,299
Public safety 53,333,976 51,116,282 53,333,976 51,116,282
Education 202,173,624 189,800,721 202,173,624 189,800,721
Public works 34,725,534 29,332,504 34,725,534 29,332,504
Community and
economic development 9,832,227 7,649,653 9,832,227 7,649,653
Health & human serv 6,198,907 5,408,663 6,198,907 5,408,693
Municipal airport 887,892 598,686 887,892 598,686
Culture and recreation 5,684,762 4,179,867 5,684,762 4,179,867
Debt service (interest) 11,809,820 12,553,318 11,809,820 12,553,318
Debt administrative fees 242237 198,846 242,237 198,846
Miscellaneous 15,146 582,951 15,146 582,951
State and county charges 1,618,112 1,553,092 1,618,112 1,553,092
Water 7,208,451 10,132,139 7,208,451 10,132,139
Airport 810,381 695,559 810,381 695,559
Total expenses 335,301,252 309,449,912 8.018.832 19,827.698 343,320,084 320,277.610
Increase (decrease) in net
assets before transfers 39,199,163 47,017,578 944,439 { 2,686,106) 40,143,602 44,331,472
Funds deficits raised { 109,361) { 109,361
Transfers from
other funds ( 5,737,895) ( 10,877,429) 5,735,895 10,956,530 ( 2,000) 79,101
Transfers out prior
year bills {(159.343) ( 159.343)
Increase (decrease) in
net assets 33,192,564 36,140,149 6,680,334 8,270,424 39,872,898 44,410,573
Net assets - beginning ** 74,118,586 37.978.437 31,055,999 22,785,575 105,174,585 60,764,012

Net assets - ending $ 37736333 § 31,055.999

$ 145,047,483

$107.311,150 § 74,118,586

$ 105,174,585

*4 This category was restated - Refer to restatement note (page 66-67) for explanation.

The majority of general revenues are tax collections from the City’s taxpayers. This amount represented 34% of the total general revenues
of $230 million. The operating grants are also a significant source of revenue for the City. The total operating grants for fiscal year ended
June 30, 2007 amounted to $68,278,767 of which $46,606,680 were received for education.

The most significant expense of the City is education which represented 60% of total expenses, followed by public safety at 16%.
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2007

General Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

=

Property taxes 34.4%

Motor vehicle and other excise 2.5%
Tax liens, fines & other 1.7%
Intergovernmental 59.1%

Earnings on investments 1.3%

E ®E O O H

Other 1.1%

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on the near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements,
In particular, anreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for
spending at the end of the fiscal year,

The City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $19,560,047 for fiscal year ended June 30,
2007 and $(17,288,280) for fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, This increase in fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, totaling
$36,848,327 is primarily due to excess revenues earned over expenditures of $20 million and $17 million in bond
proceeds.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, total fund balance of the
general fund of $26,750,700 was unreserved. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare
both unreserved fund balances and total fund balances to total fund expenditures, Total fund balance and unreserved
fund balance represent approximately 9.65% and 10.06% of total general fund expenditures, respectively.

The stabilization fund had a fund balance of $5,220,340 at the end of fiscal year 2007 and a balance of $3,052,822 at

the end of fiscal year 2006, During the year the transfers in were $3,207,755 and investment income of $119,415 was
earned.

10



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Proprietary funds. The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail. The Internal Service Fund is categorized as a governmental activity because it services primarily
governmental-type funds, The water and airport funds had net assets of $35,823,106- and $29,066,910 as of June 30, 2007 and
$1,913,226 and $1,989,088 as of June 30, 2006, respectively.

Budgetary Highlights

General Fund. The major difference between the original budget and the final budget are briefly summarized as follows:
Revenues and Other Sources:

Total budgeted revenues were increased by $7,452,753, over the original budget.

Property tax revenue were increased by $3,169,504.

Penalties and interest were increased by $800,544.

Other departmental revenue - school was increased by $551,839.

Other departmental revenue - other was increased by $1,873,313.

Earnings on investments were increased by $455,757.
Miscellaneous non-recurring was increased by $557,342,

Expenditures and Other Uses:
Total budgeted appropriations were increased by $7,122,405 over the original budget

General government unclassified was increased by $1,969,803.
Public works - highways and streets were increased by $594,560.
Public works - public facilities were increased by $851,486.
Education - school department was increased by $922,972.

Debt service was increased by $740,349.

THe major differences between the actual results of the general fund and the final amended budget are as follows:

. Total revenues were $109,258 higher than budgeted due to the following.
o $267,407 less collected than anticipated for motor vehicle excise.
o $635,607 more collected than anticipated for penalties and interest.
o Departmental other revenues were $476,493 less than budgeted.
0 Fines and forfeitures received were $114,214 higher than budgeted.
o Earnings on investments were $556,181 lower than anticipated.
o Miscellaneous non-recurring was $252,427 more than budgeted.
o $343,822 more collected than anticipated for state revenues.
L Total expenditures were lower than anticipated by $1,430,564 due to the following:
o $186,897 less spent then planned for general government.
0 Public facilities spent $270,166 less than budgeted.
o $837,547 less spent than anticipated for debt service.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of June 30, 2007 amounted
10 $335,930,219 (net of accumulated deprematlon) This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and system, improvements,
machinery and equipment, construction in progress and animals, etc. The total increase in the City’s investment in capital assets for
the current year was 4.6 percent.

1



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the Keith Middle School.

Net of Accumulated Depreciation

June 30, 2007
2007 2006
Governmenta!  Business-Type Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

Land $ 879,894 § 135,522 § 1,015416 § 702,289 § 135,522 § 837,811
Easements 962,500 962,500
Construction in progress 25,633,155 25,633,155 79,989,444 79,989,444
Infrastructure in progress 4,876,512 6,289,293 11,165,805 12,422,874 6,225,034 18,647,908
Infrastructure 38,554,206 38,331,976 76,886,182 25,125,214 34,343,152 59,468,366
Land Improvements 21,902 1,223 23,125 1,329 1,329
Buildings and

Improvements © 199,327,884 1,792,775 201,120,659 142,755,439 1,810,382 144,565,821
Machinery and Equipment 10,240,819 568,968 10,809,787 10,354,685 480,547 10,835,232
Office Equipment

and Furniture 1,819,811 10,218 1,830,029 1,259,627 19,690 1,279,317
Computer Equiptnent 3,455,151 3,723 3,458,874 2,550,512 1,774 2,552,286
Library Books and

Textbooks 2,046,166 ' 2,046,166 1,712,969 1,712,969
Automobiles 787,925 156,743 944,668 1,149,617 200,181 1,349,798
Animals 33.853 33.853 37,162 37.162

$ 287677278 § 48,252,941 $335,930,219 § 278.059.832 $ 43217611 $321.277.443

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found on note 5 on pages 48 through 50 of this report.

Long-term debt. The City had total bonded debt outstanding of $220,771,182 as of June 30, 2007 and $213,421,269 as of June 30, 2006.
The full faith and credit of the City backs this entire amount. Of this amount $12,233,836 relates to the business type activities.

During the current year the City’s total debt increased by $7,349,913. This resulted because the City incurred new debt totaling
$17,357,300 and pay downs totaled $10,007,387 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in note 12 on pages 57 through 63 of this report.
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates
The unemployment rate of the City of New Bedford is averaged 7.9 %, in 2007, down from 8.1 % in 2006.

After a professional market study concluded that there is sufficient demand to support an 80-100 room hotel downtown,
a 106 room Fairfield Inn & Suites in the downtown/waterfront area is in the works with ground breaking scheduled for
June 2008. The construction is estimated at 10 million and is expected to create 74 construction jobs. The anticipated
value of the land and building will be approximately 6.8 million, with expected growth of more than 146,000 in real
property taxes.

In 2007, New Bedford was once again ranked the top-grossing fishing port in the nation in terms of catch, with a total
of § 281 million in Iandings in 2006 with a yield of an estimated $ 1 billion in benefit to the local economy.

Visits to tourism-related destinations increased 4% in 2007, while the Buttonwood Park Zoo had 206,876 visits (up from
197,777 in 2006) making it the #1 paid city attraction. The Zoo has been selected to host the 2008 Annual Conference
of the Association of Zoo Veterinary Technicians, which will bring a national audience.

State local Aid to the City increased by 5.25 percent, from 134,963,991 to 142,058,942 from 2007 to 2008. This funding
plays a leading role in the annual budget, but leaves the City vulnerable to tax cuts and/or economic downturns at the
State level. In 2009, this revenue increased by only 2.03 percent due to economic downturns at the State level.

To work towards growing out of such heavy reliance on aid, the City is continuing to engage in significant economic
development planning initiatives that include;

An update of the City’s Harbor Master Plan

Upper harbor development Planning

Hicks Logan Urban Renewal master Plan

Historic Mill inventory and Assessment

Strategic Investment Plan for the City of New Bedford
Establishing priority Development Sites

Streamlining Municipal Permitting

e o o » ¢ &

The vacant Keystone site in the downtown area is under a P&S agreement for significant development. The development
of the Fairhaven Mills site will begin in the Summer of 2008. The site is planning 70,000 square feet of retail and
restaurant development in 3 buildings, 3 1,100 square feet of commercial development and 24,000 square feet of medical
office space. The State has awarded a grant of 1.3 million to fix the traffic interchange at the site.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of New Bedford, Massachusetts’ finances for
all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this

report or request additional financial information should be addressed to the City Auditor, 133 Williams Street, New
Bedford, Massachuseits.

13



JuseEaress snp Jo yed [eiSeiul we are $9)0u Suikmeduioade oy L

LSS0618Y % 81091681 § 6ES VLT 6T 3 FISPLYGLY § 0 6 08 3 0LLOESYTY §
28€°019°8¢C 586 L66FL c09TI9el 61T 056 SEE IF6CST 3P SLTLLYLST
£68ee £58°EL
68T 27314 L8L7608°0T $96°895 618°07T°01
8297101 060°6T $£5°E86 899°vb6 £FL9ST STE'LYL
9T°9H0T 991°9%0°C
6PES 6re's FLB8SHE £TLE 1ST°6St°e
$0LSS €8L°TS 0T6'T 6Z0°0€8T 81Z°01 118°618°T
03+°9F0°L 0069 sLO'EYT 659°0T1°10T CLLTBLT PRELTE6E]
781°988°9L OL6'TEERE 90T ¥55°8E
£69°C1¥ £69°CIY
£55°18 £65°18 STI'ET €71 Z06°1T
005796 005°796
66V THL'Y 661 THLY S08°S9T11 £6T°68T°9 TIS9L8'Y
SPEESLL SPEESTL SCI°EE9°sT SCI'EE9°ST
T08°LE09 £85°TIE 61T°CEL'S 9IF ST00 TTEGET 768°6L8
80£°66 80£°66 T06°0T1 T06°0T1
12331 £E8°1 (BLLETT ) 0ULT (66911 )
LY9°86 £65°0T ¥C0°8L 896186 6LS°69T 63€°81¢
ZEIT1 eIl
09L 094 01°TLET T01°TLET
16T°€EH°T 990°8THT STTC TTTOSHS TTT9SH'S
01911 019°6IT1
$I8'88°0 ¥ZR88Y°G
LITTT LITT1
00L°1Z0°C 00L°1T0°S
6Z€'€69°CT 6TEC69°CT
LIGEPLET L9GEFL'ET
80$°660°E 916°09T 765°8€8 799 7rI 81 008°9¢S T98°LOS'LY
00L°000°¢1 00L0D0°ET I#9°0£€° 11 T#9°0ESTI
091°619°C $ £01°6L6 3 LEO'OF9T $ ovm.mwmdm S 0088’1 $ 9E6°E0V8y  §
SITA[} S1Ia[) Juauodwoy FANSI(] JUIISEURIA] [€I6L SIRIADIY SIIADIY
aaodwo)) J0fey] woN ISNJY [BUOISNY adAy-ssomisng [BIURMRIIACS)
10 pAOJpag AN J2EIIN)
s3ru) Juuodmo)) MRUWIIRACS) ATRMLIJ
L00T ‘0¢ suny
S198SY 19N JO JUoWeIS

SLLASAHDVSSVIA ‘@I0Addd MAN 40 ALLD

$19SSE [BI0L,
s)esse Jendes EIoL

12U ‘S[eunuy
10u ‘Juawdmba pue Alurye
12U ‘Safiqomomy
19U “$HOOqQINSE PUE $300q AT2IqI]
1ou Juswrdmba ndwoy)y
19U “armpemy pue juswdmbs sy
190 “sustzascidun pue Fmpnng
AN SEU]
19u “syusmasoidun ployasey]
ou “sjustuascrdurr pue]
sjoatuRseq
ssarSo1d U 2IMONASRG]
ssarso1d ur UOTONLLSUO))
pue]
s1asse [ende)
REQLMOUOU - 519558 RO
JUSIMY - 5)3588 XY
sasmadxa predard pue SoLIOJUDAU]
sonred [eUIAIXD THOL S[qBAIOYY
S[qeALR02) AHUs-Egu]
$SNISWHIZA0S JATHO WO on(E
Ayradord U1 S)UHAURSIAK]
SPUTYJ IS0 WOy angy
S[GBAIS02] ISLINUL PATLIOIY
1PU ‘S[qEAIOAI sUCHNqIOUCs Ueld MesH
15U “2[qRAI0AI UBO]
19U “3{qBALS00] SOXB]
SOUBMO[|E JO 15U “B[qRAISSI SIUNO0OY
SJUBUISIAUL PUR USED PRIoLIsay
SJUAUGSAALI PUR YSED PIIOLISIIL)

SLASSV



St

wawes sip Jo wed piSaul e are sajou Surdueduiosse Ay,

RITLEFSE § CISO80FT § 6 0SE I $ WFLHOSH § ZECOELLE § 0ST 11T L0l §
PLTL99C 38C0ZL GBS OV6 I BIOE3E 36 E0S V89 [ 511 669 96
81589 (ss¥'e8r’'T ) 990°7£€°8 8L6°958°1 ZE6°1LT 970°585°1
LEF 98 LEF9S
(S09°LE0°T ) (sps'ie0't )
LI¥Z0I°s T1+Z01°¢
LYSTIHTS LS IPIE
(36L°09t"9¢ ) (86L°09979€ )
_ 79T006°C T9T006'C
9917926 § SLFPSSFL  $ 16Z°TLOTL $ IEERO1°S9  § LIBGLLISE  § Ve A AN YA Y
6E0ESLTI % SPr 68 Y S 965°ET6 L $ TELLIVOEE § TILLOTET & 0T9GITLIE §
SSC60E C5C60E 0EE 50001 662 ¢9T TL0SFL 6
3CH'] 85t°1
LSO'E9TT LEFRT 0T9FETT 085°LLE60T 918°96+ 11 ¥9L°088°LE1
6rT881°Y PTRSIY
LI9FE L19%E ¥62001°S 890°TLI 9ZT6T6Y
€618 £61°6¢ 05£7T
1£Z°09% 1€T°¢5 000°0% SIF91TLS 020°LEL S6E6LY 9IS
7E9°769°¢ 79769
079°cs 079°c8 SOTHIY 481 €601t
099°L8% 099°L8% 8ZRLYELT 8ZRLRELI
1017261 00S°L1 JOLEZN
$ET8T §ET8T T68SF1Y SE0°081 LEBRO6°E
LLTF69 LLT 69 PLITZT PLI'TZZ
085St 9 085°6HH9
9¢.°688°1 9€L°688°1
STT'S STT'S LRT6L L8T6L
082°¢ 08Ts _ PO e 00T
9TT156°1 % STECH6 $ 106656 $ FLOTTIONT §  691°10F $ SO660L°ST  $
BT F[] Juouodwo)) TLOSI( JUSWRSEU B 50} SUAINY SPYANIY
ymanodmo)) Jolepy moN asnyay reuoiday ad4y-ssomsng jizUE R RERTSY
183101 pA0IPIY MIN 1HBIID)
sy Jusuedao)) JUDHINIIACL) AJRUILLY
L00T “0¢ sunf

(ponuIIuOD) §3288Y 19N JO WAWLIEIS

SLLASNHOVSSVIN ‘@I0Addd MIN 40 ALID

S}2SSE 19Ul [BIO 0

. powLasamn)
sasodmd om0
Aroyuaauy
suogop wonendorddy

sysonbaq s[qepuadxa-uonN

snusAal e1oadg
s100foad enden
3914198 199(F
‘103 pa3orRsay
193p paeai

JO 19U “sjasse [erdes ur pazseau]

SLASSY LIN

SOLIIAEI] [0,

$30U3SqE pajesuadwo))

$ases] Enden)

s|qesed sajou pue spuog
$3509 SIMSO[S 150d/2IMS0[0 PatIddY

81T (o]

wey) 210w ul 9[gesed 1o snp uoniog
$30URsqE payestadwo)

sases] [eldeD)

ojqeded sajoU pue spuog
Ppau0dal 10U NG PALMOUT SWITE]))
132k SU0 UNPM 21qeied 10 snp WOnI0g

‘SONIqRY WLI-5U07)
SSIHEEGRI} 1900
SIMUSAS] PALISFI
proy susodacy
1S PATUNDY

sonred [euIayxa 03 sjqeAed

SpUny JAtHe 03 ang
sjqeied Knus-enu]

FUSILEIZA0S Y0 03 ang]

ojqeded o3eureiayg
sasuadxa

panuoe pue aqeded sjunoooy

SAIIIHAYI'T



91

JustEEaTes o Jo Med [RiSatur ue e sajou Suidiediuosse sy,

CPERFIT §  (EPSEl )$ - €88 1901 § {(S9670C061 )5 F03658 § (ZSLC90 18T )% 05609868 & SY8SGIEL § FILO0%61S § § TIZI00PSE $ PIOIPag AN JO ALD [0
OFE 8Pl 1 (eveel | TR LT YPESER S00LTO ¥ TZOLOLO - TE9'185°01 syum jusuodiues [ele]
grser ¥ (epgel ) , YPESEY S00LT9F LI8TI9T AT sy1un jusvodos Jofew-uoN
£88°191°1 £88°191°1 SPLPSI'S T98°T66°C WIOSKT WSegerey
asToy [RUOISHY PLOJPog MIN 121D
:s1an) Juamodmo)
(€96TOT 061 ) w03658 (L5700 161 ) 985 CLE 65 €78 8LE'R9 TEOCIL SF PRO0ZE £7¢ ouwEoA0s Areurud (g0
¥08° 658 708658 000°S6% SL000T 09C €8T 8 ZeeRI08 sanianoe adArssoulsng (0]
{£08°6%C ) (e086ET ) BLS0LS 1827018 Hodny
L09°660°1 £09%660°1 000°¢6E 9L0°00T TBETILL 1§¥°802°L Iaem
1SAPARDY 2dA ] -ssomisng
(2972507161 ) {I9L7Z90°TaT ) 08S0£0 65 ISL8LT 39 TE1 626 9% ZCZ 10E 5L SOTIALYE [BIUSUNLIACT [210],
(0Z8608 1T ) (0T8'608°T1T ) 0Z8608°T1 $95IRY2 [BISY PUE ISAISIY
(LeTTre ) Gerovr ) LETTHE 599 SAIRNSIUIUIDY
TB01ATSS 199
(zrrgis'r ) (ZI1°819°1 ) ZITBI9°[ $38reyd AJunos pue NG
(or1'sl ) (or1'st ) o¥1°61 STOSURT[SISTIA]
(Le9°c0¥'ce ) L69°50t°EE SIURINSHE ISE PUE LI
(92T°z00'81 }  9T1Z00'81 slgauaq UoksuRg
(g0z°s1 } {607°51 ) 69€°198 PECTT T68°188 uodire fedioramiy
(S0EPLIY ) (S0 PLIY ) reor 8L 0E8 FOL°EE9 06t°806 TLTOLLY UoHE2159] pue UMM
(pzT'60e1 ) (bTT'69c’l ) 00T'L6 £08°¢9¢E°8 LTTTERS 1uamdorsaap
JIWOU0IS pUe AIUAURL0.)
(bOE°LZICIT } (POETLTICTT ) 0S¥ L10°9¢ 089°09°01 061°TTF'Y £82°15€°5E 1FETC8 991 uonEdnpH
(360°216°1T ) (860°LI6T ) £00°¢ 120°eT1l S8L'ES1'E $96°80+°C 6E668L'E S301AI9S UBIINY pPUe (IS
(006°v08°L ) (006v08°L ) £90°¢HL 1 SHEPELS 9T0'E86°ST 600°¢85°1 STSTHL'EE Sx0m OT[gqnd
(#81°09%°sy ) (vgrioor'sy ) 1££°281 0EF'6¥8°1 166'1¥8°S L0B°055°6 691°E8L'Er Ajeges orqng
$ S § (zTsos T )8 $ (LzT’eos’s B S08°LL $  obsiR0€ $  THFES8S §  STTCOST % 68LELEL 0§ JUSTIIRA0S [RI9120
SSAMIANDY [FJIDWRLIIALS)
SHG[] ST PLOS (TN RIAIRY POIARY SIONNQLOUC)  SUGHRALOUC) SOMATIS [Tz sostadxq
yuzuodmoy ymaaoduioy PLYsL(J [Erordag adi)-ssouisng  [BIUAWELIIAS PUE SHUELD) pue synein 10] SIRIEG) asuadxy
L0, Aofemmon] POJPRY AN 1B rexde Fumerdo pe ‘sauLg ‘s3] 1Ipuy
s wsuodiio) HULAGD puitid
$J355Y JON Ul S9SUEY ) PUE INUIATY (SUUXH ) JON SINUIATY IELIS0LJ

LOOZ Qg dung papuy Jea au3 50
SOMANOY JO JUDLISIE}S

SLIASNHDVSSVIA ‘@I0I0Id MIN 10 ALID



Ll

JTAUIN)EIS 313 30 ued [RISUI HE a1 $2)0U SUTAURdUodE 511,

RICLEPCE §  SIC980F%I $  EVEOSEIC § I3vivlorl S IEEotlit S OSTIIELOl $
9P 0£9°EE 96 0 vl 0057965761 AN 866 SS0IE 985 81T ¥L
Z60°L0STT 6v9°CE PP FSLT 868 TLY6E ¥EE0399 FOSZOIEE
TSL8T9 019¢ 0957766 1987CLO0ET 0ES0Z8 S 1€CCCTYIT
000 ) GORSELS SeTLELS )
{19c°601 ) (19£°601 )
(eveest ) {eve'6sT )
£59°7 £69°C 0r1°S5S°T SE9'Pe SOS0LY'T
0LO'L8S 0LO'LYS
660979 6E5°¢E 095°Z68 G68°8LYT S68°8L8°T
B0E°GEE f0LSeL
ISTI06°T 1STT06T
£29°091 £€39°091
1211 12T°11
Z995 S7A S
CeT9IL CETIIL
TLO'TES'LT TLETESLT
PO TOLPOI 9T TOLPOT
79865V T T95°65H'T
8BFECLYS 8RYECL'C
b 3 SIFLTI6L § $ SIFiTI6L  §
Sy Sy RLGSIq [E100, SPANYY SINIAY suonRqLOUOY) suoynqLue’) SAIG
yauodmo)y yuanedwo’) JILSIJ TeUOLEY adLy-ssomisng  [EIEIMLIIACY) PUE SJUBIN) PUE SJUELS) 1oy sagregDy
reioL Jofemuo)  paoypag MIN 1B rende) SugesdQ puE ‘sauLy ‘633
squp) anoduos FuAUU L2005 LDty
$I955Y J3N Ul S9SUEY ) PUE JNUJAdY (3SUAX]) JaN SINUIAYY WEASHIY

Surpua-51955e 19N

peleIsal “SUIUULS24-5195SE RN
s1985® 10U 1] a5uRyD)

SANUIARI [RIDUST [€10],

SpUTY 13410 WO SISJSUBS],
pastel Sdyap pung
STTIq TeaA rowd 10 SISfSuel],
SI9JSUBIY

SNOIUBT[IISIIN
$2XE) JO N2A] Uf SUSTIAR 4
SIUSURSIAUT UC SSUIRY
SAIMJI3HI0) pPUE SIULY

$AXE] UG JSAIAN PUE S3NIRUSY

SOMSOII0} X8 ]
pUL] PAUMO SIEIS

Aep]e 7 ssnods Suratams ‘purjq s URIRA - suenduwaxg

PI# [BUOLIDPY - UORNGEASLT
Axapor] - wouNQISIQ

PIV 10000 - UORNGHISICT
souEIsIsse SuIpfIng [0S

SOXE} SSI0X JISTHO PUR A[OMY3A IOIOIA]

SIHWSIEGR 10] AT9521 JO Jou “Ayadoxd fenosiad pue aqelss ey

$9NUIAS] [BISULNY

SLIASAHIVSSVIA ‘QI0IqTd MAN 40 ALLD

L00T "0€ ounf papuy Jeax A 1o

SOLITAHOY JO JUSUISEIS

POIBYOIY SIsuAdxg
asuadxy
Rpay



ASSETS

Cash and investments, unrestricted
Cash, restricted
Receivables, net:
Real estate and personal property taxes
Tax liens and foreclosures
Motor vehicle and boat excise
User charges receivable
Accrued interest
Departtnental receivables
Federal and state receivables
Loans receivable
Other receivables
Special assessments, cutrent
Special assessments, non-current
Due from other funds
Intraentity receivable
Due from other governments
Inventories
Land inventory

Totat assets

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

Liabilities:
Warrants payable
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Retainage payable
Bonds and notes payable
Interim loan payable
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Other liabilities
Deferred revenue

Totat liabilities

Fund balances (deficits):
Reserved for:
Encumbrances
Debt Service
Non expendable bequests
Inventory
Other specific purposes
Designated
Unreserved
Undesignated, reported in nonmajor:
Special revenue funds
Capital project funds
Permanent funds

Total fund balances (deficits)

Total liabilities and fund balances (deficits)

June 30, 2007
Nonmajor Total
General Wastewater Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Stabilization Funds Funds

§ 22361,455 3 397,712 b 76,319 $ 26,251,944 $ 48,292,006
9,597,820 1,932,821 11,530,641

3,371,167 3,371,167
17,648,280 17,648,280
2,750,172 2,750,172
1,542,718 1,542,718

8,730 3,387 12,117

6,176,213 6,176,213
9,137,137 9,137,137

17,387,828 17,387,828

1,108,799 63,923 474,476 1,647,198
3211 ( 119,710) ( 116,499)
120,902 120,902

2,972,614 26,315 3,211,200 269,079 6,479,208
2,572,102 2,572,102
541,006 4915216 5,456,222
56,437 15,034 71,471

246918 246,918

$ 59,505,019 $ 10899423 3 5220340 $§ 58701019 $ 134325801
$ 1,640,891 $ 205,270 $ 8 454,746 $ 2,300,907
8,108,070 458,156 4,804,296 13,370,522
244,040 244,040

39,409,944 39,409,944

6,414,971 6,414,971

3,542,375 3,000,507 123,872 6,666,754
79,287 79,287

334,297 79,796 414,093
20,222 442 1,607,203 24,035,591 45,865,236
33,848,075 5,271,136 75,646,543 114,765,754
106,019 106,019
2,900,262 2,900,262

5,102,411 5,102,411

56,437 56,437

81,125 1,503,901 1,585,026
1,051,172 1,051,172
24,417,628 1,167,687 5,220,340 30,805,655
9,141,847 9,141,847
{ 36,460,798) { 36,460,798)

5,271,016 5,271,016

25,656,944 5628287 5,220,340 { 16,945,524) 19,560,047
3 59,505,019 § 10,899,423 $ 5220340 $ 58,701,019 § 134325801

The accompattying notes are an integral part of this statement



REVENUE

Real estate and personal property taxes
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes
School Building Authority reimbursement
Tax Hens and foreclosures

Penalties and interest on taxes
Licenses and permits

Fines and forfeitures

Investment income

Intergovernmental - operating grants
Intergovernmental - capital grants
Charges for services

Other - indirects

Special assessments & betterments
Payments in licu of taxes
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General governtent
Public safety
Education
Public works
Community and economic development
Health and human services
Municipal airport
Culture and recreation
Pension benefits
Health and other insurance
Miscellaneous
State and county charges
Debf service:
Principal payments
Interest and fiscal charges
Debt administrative fees

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Bond proceeds
Transfer out bills of prior years
Fund deficits raised
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources and uses
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances-beginning, restated

Fund balances-ending

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Nonmajor Total
General Wastewater Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Stabilization Funds Funds
$ 78,937,074 $ $ $ $ 78,937,074
6,151,971 6,151,971
2,459,562 2,459,562
2,859,363 2,859,363
2,901,151 2,901,151
2,055,265 2,055,265
333,198 2,110 335,308
1,129,706 393,365 119,415 1,232,469 2,874,955
155,965,491 6,628,779 71,748,044 240,342,314
3,030,279 3,030,279
14,944,782 15,770,943 2,428,244 33,143,969
407,362 7,637 414,999
5,389 5,389
587,070 587,070
1,278,583 639,206 554,188 2471971
270,015 967 23,432,293 119,415 85,002,971 378,570,646
6,292,842 1,071,363 7,364,205
40,841,423 1,819,820 42,661,243
132,337,490 65 37,095,656 169,433,211
17,149,260 10,978,073 17,502,019 45,629,152
9,907,278 9,907,278
2,731,578 872,434 3,604,012
887,892 887,892
3,896,190 551,397 4,447,587
18,002,126 18,002,126
33,405,657 33,405,657
15,146 15,146
1,618,112 1,618,112
4,034,500 5,164,188 100,000 9,208,688
5,657,243 6,470,985 12,128,228
242,237 242 237
265,981,567 22.855.483 65 69,807,859 358,644,974
4,034,400 576,810 119,350 15,195,112 19,925,672
17,357,300 17,357,300
( 159,343) { 159,343)
( 109,361} 109,361)
620,954 89,128 3,207,755 999,938 4,917,775
(4403.4601) ( 15,000) ( 274283) { 350,972) ( 5.083716)
{4,051.211) 74,128 2933472 17,966,266 16,922 655
( 16,811) 650,938 3,052,822 33,161,378 36,848,327
25,673,753 4.977.349 2.167.518 { 50.106,902}) ( 17.288.280)
$ 25656944 $ 5628287 $ 5220340 $(  16,945,524) §_ 19,560,047

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the statement
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
Total Fund Balances to the Statement of Net Assets

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Total governmental fund balances

Record atlowance for doubtful accounts that are financial resources,
for the governmental funds.

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available 1o pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to account for health
insurance and workers' compensation activities.

The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in
the governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets.

In the statement of activities, inferest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in governmental funds interest is not reported until due.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds
Bonds and notes payable
Compensated absences

Capital leases

Net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

$ 19,560,047

( 2,615,555)

287,671,271

28,477.408

1,412,138

( 3,968,857)

(208,535,243)
( 14,672,257)

(__ 23.808)

$ 107,311,150



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

_ Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds
To record allowance for doubtful accounts that are resources for governmental funds

Governmenta! funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement
of Activities the cost of those assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays
exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources
are fully deferred in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various types of accounts
receivable (i.e., real estate and personal property, motor vehicle excise, efc.) differ
between the two statements. This amount represents the net change in deferred
revenue.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term
debt consumes the financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction,
however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect
of issuance costs, premivms, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities.
This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term
debt and related items.

In the Statement of Activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in governmental funds interest is not reported until due.

~ Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities, such as compensated
absences, do not require current financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to account for health insurance
and workers' compensation activities.

The net activity of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

$ 36,848,327

( 258,819)

9,617,446

( 4,112,370)

( 7,953,628)

318,408

( 1,567,759)

300,959

$ 33,192,564
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2007

Business-Type Activities Governmental Activities -

Water Airport Total Internal Service Funds
ASSETS
Current assets: .
Cash and short-term investments $ 2,057,513 $¢( 175,509) $ 1,882,004 b 111,930
User charges receivables, net 521,944 521,944
Other receivables, net 10,594 4,262 14,856
Due from other funds 9,616
Deposits with others 5,021,700
Inventory 269,579 269,579
Other assets 2,720 - 2720
Total current assets 2,862,350 { 171.247) 2,691,103 5.143.246
Non-current assets:
Land 135,522 135,522
Easements 962,500 962,500
Infrastructure in progress 6,289,293 6,289,293
Infrastructure 38,331,976 38,331,976
Land improvements, net 1,223 1,223
Building and improvements, net 47,033 1,745,742 1,792,775
Machinery and equipment, net 285,413 283,555 568,968
Office equipment and furniture, net 8,996 1,222 10,218
Computer equipment, net 3,723 3,723
Automobiles, net 156,743 156,743
Total non-current assets 46,085,677 2,167,264 48,252,941
Total assets $ 48948027 % 1,996,017 $§ 50,944,044 h 5,143,246
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Warrants payable $ 126,221 § 4301 § 130,522 $ 38,476
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 158,537 12,110 170,647
Accrued interest 180,035 180,035
Bonds payable 737,020 737,020
Capital leases 59,193 59,193
Compensated absences 145,706 25,362 171,068
Due to other funds
Other liabilities 112 112
Claims incurred but not reported 3,692,632
Total current liabilities 1,406,824 41,773 1,448',597 3,731,108
Non-current liabilities:
Bonds payable 11,496,816 11,496,816
Capital leases
Compensated absences 221,281 41,018 262,299
Total non-current liabilities 11,718,097 41,018 11,759,115
Total liabilities $ 13,124,921 $ 82,791 § 13,207,712 $ 3.731.108
NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets, net of related debt  § 33,612,613 5 2,167,264 $ 35,779,877 $
Restricted 271,952 271,952 -
Reserved for revenue deficit ( 25,715y | 25,715)
Unrestricted 1,938,541 { 228,323) 1,710,218 1,412,138
Total net assets $ 35823106 § 1,913,226 § 37,736,332 b 1,412,138

The accompanying notes an integral part of this statement



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Statement of Revénues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Business-Type Activities Governmental Activities -
Water Airport Total Internal Service Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 7,682,979 § 570,578 § 8,253,557 $
Utility liens and penalties 30,003 30,003
Capital grants and contributions 395,000 395,000
Interfund services provided 200,076 200,076
Contributions (employee & employer 40,079,437
Miscellaneous : 84.635 84.635
Total operating revenues 8,392,693 570,578 8,963,271 40,079,437
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits 2,125,094 342,959 2,468,053 25,028 -
Services and supplies . 2,903,143 390,127 3,293,270 24,636
Depreciation expense 1,612,420 77,295 1,689,715
Health & other insurance ’ 39,732,754
Total operating expenses 6.640.657 810,381 7.451,038 39.782.418
Operating income (loss) 1,752,036 ( 239,803} 1,512,233 297,019
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Debt service - interest payments ( 567,794} ( 567,794)
Investment income 3.940
Total nonoperating revenue {(expenses) { 567,794) { 567,794) 3,940
Income (loss) before transfers 1,184,242 ( 239.803) 944,439 300,959
TRANSFERS
TransfersIn 5,571,954 163,941 5,735,895
Total Transfers 5,571,954 163,941 5.735.895
Change in net assets 6,756,196  ( 75.862) 6,680,334 300,959
Total net assets-beginning, restated 29.066.910 1,989,088 31,055,998 1,111,179
Total net assets-ending $ 35823106 $ 1913226 § 37736332  § 1,412,138

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Business-Type Activities

Governmental Activities -

Water Airport Total Internal Service Funds

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from employee and employer )

contributions and governmettal units $ $ b $ 40,079,437
Cash received from customers 7,757,971 578,436 8,336,407
Payments from/(to) suppliers and employees ( 5,030,016) ( 748,271y  ( 5,778,287) 13,035
Payments to participants and employees . ( 43,274,406)
Internal activity-payments from (to) other funds 3,174,751
Other receipts 479,635 479,635
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 3,207,590 ( 169.835) 3.037.755 ( 7.183)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers in (out) 5,330,881 163,941 5,494,822
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital

financing activities 5,330,881 163,941 5.494.822
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchases and construction of capital assets ( 6,701,529) ( 23,516) (  6,725,045)
Principal paid on capital leases { 56,232) ( 56,232)
Principal paid on capital debt ( 710,801) { 710,801)
Interest paid on capital debt ( 579.404) ( 579,404}
Net cash provided (used) by capital and

related financing activities ( 8.047.966) _( 23,516y _( 8.071.482)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest paid on long-term debt 3,940
Net cash provided by investing activities 3,940
Net inctease in cash and cash equivalents 490,505 ( 29.410) 461,095 ({ 3.243)
Balances-beginning of the year 1,567,008 { 146,099 1,420,909 115,173
Balances-end of the year 3 2,057,513 $¢ 175,509) $ 1,882,004 $ 111,930
Displayed as:

Cash and short-term investments $ 2,057,513 $( 175.509) $ 1,882,004 $ 111,930
Total cash and short-term investments $ 2,057513 $¢( 1,882,004 $ 111,930

175,509) §$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statetnent
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Business-Type Activities

Governmental Activities -

Water Airport Total Internal Service Funds
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net
cash provided {used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss} $ 1,752,036 § ( 239,803) 3 1,512,233 $ 297,019
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided (used} by operating activities:
Depreciation expense 1,612,420 77,295 1,689,715
Change in asséts and liabilities:
{Increase) decrease receivables, net ( 153,861) 7,858 ( 146,003)
{Increase) decrease other assets ( 1,227) { 1,227)
(Increase) decrease prepaid expenses ( 291,700)
Increase (decrease) due from/to other funds 3,174,751
Increase (decrease) warrants & accounts
payable ( 14,631) ( 18,844) ( 33,475) ( 3,144,464)
Increase (decrease) compensated absences 12,853 3,659 16,512
Increase (decrease) in incurred but not
reported ( 42,789
Net cash provided (used) by operating
activities $ 3.207.590 $( 169.835) § 3,037,755 $ 7,183)

The accompanying notes ate an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds and Similar Component Units

June 30, 2007

Pension Trust

Fund (As of Private Purpose
December 31, 2006) Trust Funds Agency Total

Assets
Cash and short-term investments $ 4,166,698 $ 3370 § 4,734,941 $ 8,905,009
Investments ' 221,737,707 14,803 221,752,510
Receivables, net of allowance or uncollectibles:

Employee

Interest and dividends 609,350 609,350

Other 418,433 403,835 822,268
Due from external parties - component unit
Due from external parties - primary government 191,985 191,985

Due from other governments
Total assets
Liabilities

Warrants payable
Accounts payable

$ 226932188 % 18,173 § 5,330,761

Payable to external parties - primaty government

Deposits held
Total liabilities

Net Assets

$232,281,122

Held in trust for pension benefits

and othet purposes

$ $ 3,346 % 297,554 $ 300,900
828,363 271,368 1,105,731

14,054 14,054

1,237,600 4,741,785 5,979,385
2,065,963 3,346 5,330,761 7,400,070

$ 224866225 § 14827 § $ 224,881,052

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds and Similar Component Units

Additions:
Contributions:
Employer
Employee
Total contributions
Net investment income:
Dividends and interest
Net appreciation in fair value
of investments
Total investment income
Less: investment expenss

Net investment income

Intergovernmental

Total Additions
Deductions:
Retirement benefits
Administration
Transfets, reimbursements and refunds

Total Deductions

Other Financing Sounrces (Uses):
Transfers from other funds

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets at Beginning of Year

Net Assets at End of Year

June 30, 2007

Pension Trust
Fund (As of

December 31, 2006)

$ 20,829,024
8,027,562

28,856,586

5,401,330

22,836,704

28,238,034

1,700,973

26,537,061

1,689,367

57,083,014

29,404,072
420,770
1,293,100

31,117,942

25,965,072
198,901,153

3 224,866,225

Private Purpose
Trust Funds

1,003
738

1,741

1,741

1.741

7.241

7,241

2,001
_ 2,001

( 3,499)

18,326

$ 14,827

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

Total

$ 20,829,024
8,027,562

28,856,586

5,402,333
22,837,442
28,239,775

1,700.973
26,538,802

1,689,367
57,084,755

29,404,072
428,011

1,293,100

31,125,183

2,001

2,001

25,961,573

198,919,479

§ 204,881,052
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2007
NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying basic financial statements of the City of New Bedford (the City) are presented in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB).

A. Reporting Entity

The City is a Massachusetts municipal corporation with a Mayor-Council form of government. These financial
statements present the City (the primary government) and its component units. The component units are legally separate
entities that are included in the City’s reporting entity because of the significance of their operating or financial
relationships with the City.

Discretely Presented Component Units:

This component unit is reported in a separate column to emphasize that it is legally separate from the City, but is included
because the City is financially accountable for and is able to impose its will on the organization. Unless otherwise
indicated, the notes to the basic financial statements pertain to primary government because certain disclosures of the
component unit are not significant relative to the primary government, A description of the component unit, criteria for
inclusion and its relationship with the City is as follows:

Greater New Bedford Regional Refuse Management District is an inter-municipal landfill benefitting the City of New
Bedford and the adjacent Town of Dartmouth. The Refuse District is governed by a six member committee, three of
whom are appointed by the City and three of whom shall be appointed by the Town of Dartmouth. Although legally
separate, the Greater New Bedford Regional Refuse Management District is reported on the government-wide financial
statements as a component unit. Separate financial statements for the Greater New Bedford Regional Refuse
Management District are not included in this financial statement presentation. These financial statements could be
obtained by contacting the Greater New Bedford Regional Refuse Management District.

Blended Component Units:

The following compoenent units have been presented as blended component units (included in the primary government)
because the component unit provides services entirely or almost entirely for the benefit of the City.

The Harbor Development Commission was established under the Acts of 1957 as a Public Instrumentality to develop
and market both the New Bedford Harbor as well as the waterfront properties. The Harbor Development Commission
manages the local marina, harbors and waterways on behalf of the City, The Commission is made up of seven members,
of which the mayor is the chairperson and six other appointed members. Although legally separate, the Harbor
Development Commission is reported on the government-wide financial statements ag a non-major component unit.
Separate financial statements for the Harbor Development Commission are not included in this financial statement
presentation. These financial statements could be obtaihed by contacting the Harbor Development Commission.

Department of Workforce Development Administration (DWDA)/New Directions was established pursuant to the Job
Training Partnership Act of 1982, 29 U.S.C. Sec. 1501 et seq. to provide employment training programs to eligible
individuals. Although legally separate, Department of Workforce Development Administration (DWDA) is reported
on the government-wide financial statements as a non-major component unit. Separate financial statements for
Department of Workforce Development Administration (DWDA) are not included in this financial statement
presentation. These financial statements could be obtained by contacting New Directions.
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

June 30, 2007

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
A. Reporting Entity (Continued)

The Redevelopment Authority was organized under the provisions of Massachusetts General Laws 121B. The purpose
ofthe Authority is to engage in urban renewal projects and other related work. The Redevelopment Authority is reported
on the government-wide financial statements as a non-major component unit. Separate-financial statements for the
Redevelopment Authority are not included in this financial statement presentation. These financial statements could be
obtained by contacting the Redevelopment Authority.

The Contributory Retirement System (CRS) is a defined benefit contributory retirement plan covering employees of the
City and certain other entities. The City Auditor is an ex-officio member of the System’s Board and the City is the largest
employer in the System. The Retirement System accounts for resources available to be used for payment of pension
benefits. The Retirement System is reported on the Fiduciary Fund financial statements, as a similar component unit

740 Belleville Avenue, LLC has been formed as a limited liability company under the Massachusetts Limited Liability
Company Act for the purpose of holding property in order to facilitate the orderly transfer of the property to a
Brownsfield redeveloper and; and to engage in any activity directly or indirectly related or incidental thereto. Members
of this LLC are the City of New Bedford at 49% and New Bedford Redevelopment Authority at 51%.

New Bedford Railroad, LLC has been formed as a limited liability company under the Massachusetts Limited Liability
Company Act to develop, operate and maintain passenger and freight rail systems and yards in Southeastern
Massachusetts, and to engage in any activities directly or indirectly related or incidental thereto. Members ofthis LLC
are the City of New Bedford and the New Bedford Redevelopment Authority.

Quest Center, LLC has been formed as a limited liability company under the Massachusetts Limited Liability Company
Act to engage in the business of developing and maintaining a marine science and technology business incubator; and
to engage in any activities directly or indirectly related or incidental thereto, Members of this LLC are the City of New
Bedford at 51% and New Bedford Economic Redevelopment Council at 49%.

quernment—Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The City’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the City as a whole) and fund financial
statements (reporting the City’s major funds). Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize
primary activities as either governmental or business-type. The City’s public safety, parks, library and recreation, public
works, wastewater, and general administrative services are classified as governmental activities. The City’s water and
airport services are classified as business-type activities.

B. Government-Wide Statements

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, the governmental column is presented on a consolidated basis by
column, and are reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and
receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. The City’s net assets are reported in three parts — invested in
capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net assets; and unrestricted net assets. The City first utilizes restricted
resources to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities repor(s both the gross and net cost of each of the City’s functions {police,

fire, public works, etc.). The functions are also supported by general government revenues (property, sales and use taxes,
certain intergovernmental revenues, fines, permits and charges, etc.) The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

June 30, 2007

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
B. Government-Wide Statements (Continued)

(including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly
asscciated with function (police, public works, community and economic development, etc.). Operating grants include
operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects capital-
specific grants.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. However,
fiduciary funds are not included in the government-wide statements since these assets are held for the benefit of private
parties and pension participants, and cannot be used to satisfy obligations of the primary government. Major individual
governmental and enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The net costs (by function) are normally covered by general revenue (property, sales taxes, intergovernmental revenues,
interest income, efc.)

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in the City’s net assets
resulting from the current year’s activities.
C. Fund Financial Statements
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, even though
fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide statements. Major individual governmental funds and major
individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fingncial statements, Non-major funds are aggregated
and displayed in a single column.
Major Fund Criteria;
Major funds must be reported if the following criteria are met:
Ifthe total assets; liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of an individual governmental or enterprise fund
are at least 10 percent of the corresponding element (assets, liabilities; etc.) for all funds of the category or type (total

governmental or total enterprise funds) and,

Ifthe total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expense of the individual governmental fund or enterprise
fund or at least 5 percent of the corresponding element for all governmental and enterprise combined.

Additionally, any other governmental or enterprise fund that management believes is of particular significance to the
basic financial statements may be reported as a major fund.

Internal service funds and fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2007
NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
C. Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
The following funds are used by the City:
1. Governmental Funds
The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of the financial
position and changes in financial position (sources, uses and balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income.

The following is a description. of the governmental funds of the City:

»  General fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial resources except
those required to be accounted for in another fund.

b. Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

c Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by business-type/proprietary funds).

d. Permanent funds contain resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings may be
used for purposes that support the reporting government’s programs.

2. Proprietary Funds

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in net assets, financial
position, and cash flows. The accounting principles generally accepted in the United States applicable are those similar
to businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the proprietary funds of the City:

a. Enterprise funds are required to be used to account for operations for which a fee is charged to
external users for goods and services and the activity is financed with debt that is solely secured by
a pledge of the net revenues, has third party requirements that the cost of proving services, including
capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges or establishes fees and charges based on a pricing
policy designed to recover similar costs.

b. Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by an
activity to other departments, funds or component units of the City on a cost-reimbursement basis.
3. Fiduciary Funds
Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore are not available
to support City programs. The reporting focus i3 on net assets and changes in net assets and are reported using
accounting principles similar to proprietary funds.
a. Private purpose trust funds are used to account for trust arrangements, other than those properly
reported in the permanent fund under which principal and investment income exclusively benefits

individual, private organizations or other governments,

b, Agency funds are used to account for assets held in a purely custodial capacity.

31



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes.to Financial Statements (Continued)

June 30, 2007

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
C. Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or business-type activities categories.
Nonmajor funds by category are summarized into a single column. GASB No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of
assets, Habilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of either fund category of the governmental and entetprise combined) for
the determination of major funds.

The City’s internal service fund is presented in the proprietary fund financial statements. Because the principal users of the
internal services are the City’s governmental activities, the financial statement of the internal service fund is consolidated into
the governmental column when presented in the government-wide financial statements.

The City’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type (pension, private purpose and agency).
Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party {other local governments, private parties, pension
participants, etc.) and cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated
into the government-wide statements.

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported
in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made regardless of the measurement focus applied.

1. Accrual

The governmental and business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary and fiduciary
fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses
are recognized when incurred.

Under this basis of accounting and measurement focus, the-City applies (a) all GASB pronouncements and (b) FASB Statements
and Interpretations, APB Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989, except those
that conflict with a GASB pronouncement.

2. Medified Accrual

The governmental fund financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual, i.e., both measurable and available. “Available”
means collectible within the current period or within 60 days after year end. Expenditures are generally recognized under the
modified accrual basis of accounting when the related Hability is incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal
and interest on general obligation long-term debt, if any, is recognized when due.

E. Financial Statement Amounts

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, demand deposits and highly liquid investments with
a maturity of three months or less when purchased.
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

June 30, 2007

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

E. Financial Statement Amounts (Continued)

2. Investments

Investments, including deferred compensation and pension funds, are stated at fair value. Fair values are based on quotations from
the national securities exchange. Purchases and sales of investments are recorded on the trade date. Transactions unsettled as
of year-end are recorded as prepaid for securities purchased and as receivables for securities sold.

3. Real Estate, Personal Property Taxes, Tax Liens and Tax Foreclosures

Real and personal property taxes are based on values levied (assessed) and liened as of each January 1* of every year Real estate
and personal property taxes levied are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year of the levy.

Real estate tax liens are processed six months after the close of the valuation year on delinquent properties and are recorded as
receivables in the fiscal year they are processed. :

Tax liens may be subject to foreclosure if the tax liens are not paid in accordance with the period required by the law (M.G.L.
Ch.60, §50). Foreclosure proceedings are processed by the Treasurer or other tax lien custodian. Foreclosed properties can be
then sold through advertised public auction or held for use by the City,

Real estate receivables are secured via the tax lien process and are considered 100% collectible. Accordingly, an allowance for
uncollectible is not reported.

Personal property taxes cannot be secured through the lien process. The allowance for uncollectibles is estimated based on
historical trends and specific account analysis.

Motor Vehicle Excise

Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for each vehicle registered and are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year of
" the levy. The Commonwealth is responsible for reporting the number of vehicles registered and the fair values of those vehicles.
The tax calculation is the fair value of the vehicle multiplied by $25 per $1,000 of value.

The allowance for uncollectibles is estimated based on historical trends and specific account analysis.

Departmental and Other

Departmental and other receivables consist primarily of public safety details and emergency management service fees that are
recorded as receivables in the fiscal year accrued. The allowance of uncollectibles is estimated based on historical trends and
specific account analysis. Allowances of $500,874 were recorded as of June 30, 2007.

Usage Receivables

Receivables are recorded at net realizable value when earned under the accrual basis and modified basis of accounting.
Allowances of $309,919 were recorded as of June 30, 2007.

Special Assessments

The costs incurred on completed special projects that have been assessed to the benefitted taxpayers which have not been paid.
These receivables are considered 100% collectible and therefore do not report an allowance for uncollectibles.
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
MNotes to Financial Statements (Continued)

June 30, 2007

E. Financial Statement Amounts (Continued)

3. Real Estate, Personal Property Taxes, Tax Liens and Tax Foreclosures (Continued)

Intergovernmental

Various federal and state grants for operating and capital purposes are applied for and received annually. For non-
expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have
been met. For expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded when the qualifying expenditures are incurred and
all other grant requirements are met.

These receivables are considered 100% collectible and therefore do not report an allowance for uncolletibles.

Loans

The City administers loan programs that provide housing assistance to residents and capital needs assistance for small
businesses. Upon issuance, a receivable is recorded for the principal amount of the loan.

Allowances of $1,694,499 were recorded as of June 30, 2007.
4. Inventory

The cost of supplies and other inventoriable items as recorded is an expenditure at the time of purchase (purchase
method). No significant inventory balances were on hand at June 30, 2007. '

5. Capital Asseis

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets {(e.g., roads, bridges, curbs, gutters,
streets, sidewalks, and drainage systems) are reported in the applicable governmental activities column in the
government-wide financial statements, Capital assets purchased or acquired with an aggregated original cost of $10,000
or more are reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value
as of'the date received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an
asset are capitalized. Net interest costs related 1o construction projects are capitalized during the related period. Such
costs were not considered material during fiscal 2007. Donated capital assets are valued at theit estimated fair value at
the time recorded.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives
are not included in fixed assets.
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NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
E. Financial Statement Amounts (Continued)
5, Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Building 20-50 years
Water and sewer system 30-50 years
Other infrastructure 10-50 years
Improvements 10-20 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years

GASB No. 34 required the City to report and depreciate new infrastructure assets effective June 30, 2002. Infrastructure
assets include roads, bridges, underground pipe (other than related fo utilities), traffic signals, etc. These infrastructure
assets are likely to be the largest asset class of the City. Neither their historical cost nor related depreciation had
historically been reported in the financial statements. The retroactive reporting of infrastructure is subject to an extended
implementation period and was first effective for fiscal year ending 2006.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Capital assets costs are recorded as expenditures in the acquiring fund in the fiscal year of the purchése.

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave, which will be liquidated with expendable available financial resources
are reported as expenditures and fund liabilities.

6. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the government-wide and propriety fund statement of net assets. Material
bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method.

7. Deferred Reveniie

Deferred revenue at the governmental fund financial statement level represents billed receivables that do not meet the
available criteria in accordance with the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis
of accounting.

8. Compensated Absences

Employees are granted sick and vacation leave in varying amounts. Upon retirement, termination or death, eligible
employees are compensated for unused sick and vacation leave (subject to certain limitations) at specific payment rates

established by controls, regulations or policy.

Compensated absence liabilities related to both governmental and business-type activities are normally paid from the
funds reporting payroll and related expenditures.

Government-Wide and Propriety Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave are reported as liabilities and expensed as incurred.
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NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
E. Financial Statement Amounts (Continued)
9. Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for fund expenditures are recorded in
order to reserve portions of applicable appropriations, is employed in governmental funds.

10. Net Assets and Fund Equity
Government -Wide Financial Statements (Net Assets):

Net assets are reported as resiricted when amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside
parties for a specific future use.

Net assets have been “restricted for” the following:
. “Loans” represents community development outstanding loan receivable balances.

. “Permanent funds - expendable” represents amounts held in trust for which the expenditures are restricted by
various trust agreements.

. “Permanent funds - nonexpendable” represents amounts held in trust for which only investment earnings may
be expended.
. “Other purposes” represent restrictions placed on assets from outside parties and primarily represents school

federal and state grants whose use is limited to specific grant activities.

. It is the policy of the City of New Bedford to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

Fund Financial Statements (Fund Balances):

The reserved portions of fund balance consist principally of the portion which is not appropriated for expenditures, which is legally
segregated for a specific future use.

Fund balances have been reserved for the following:

Encumbrances - represents amounts obligated under purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for expenditures
that are being carried over to ensuing fiscal year.

Perpetual Permanent Funds - represents amounts held in trust for which enly investment earnings may be expended.

In addition, certain wastewater reserve funds are adjusted on the last business day of each calendar month. The Trustee is required
to apply amounts available in the revenue fund to the following reserve funds in the following order:

Operating Account of the Operating Fund - Monthly deposit to equal the amount of Operating Expenses in the next
succeeding month, as provided in the Wastewater Division’s annual operating budget;

Working Capital Account of the Operating Fund - Deposit as needed to equal the Operating Fund Deficit,
if any;

Debt Service Fund - Monthly deposits on account of debt service on City Revenue Bonds;
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NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

E. Financial Staf:ement Amounts (Continued)

10.  Net Assefs and Fund Equity (Continued)
Debt Service Reserve Fund - Deposit as needed to meet the Debt Service Reserve Fund requirement;
Operating Reserve Fund - Deposit as needed to meet the Operating Reserve Fund requirement;

Renewal and Replacement Reserve Fund - Deposit as needed to meet the Renewal and Replacement Reserve
Fund requirement:

Insurance Reserve Fund - Deposit as needed to meet the Insurance Reserve Fund requirement, if any;

Renewal and Replacement Accounts - Deposit as determined by the City to fund ongoing repair and
maintenance of the Wastewater System; and

Debt Service Assistance Account in the Debt Service Fund - Deposit as determined by the City in
anticipation of the receipt of Debt Service Assistance from the Commonwealth or other sources.

Unreserved Fund Equity - The unreserved fund balances for governmental funds represent the amount available for budgeting
future operations. Unreserved retained earnings for proprietary funds represent the net assets available on future operations or
distribution. :

11. Revenues

Substantially all governmental fund revenues are accrued. Property taxes are billed and collected within the same period in which
the taxes are levied. Asrequired by GASB No. 33 when recording grant revenues, the provider recognizes liabilities and expenses
and the recipient recognizes receivables and revenue with the applicable eligibility requirements, including time requirements,
are met. Resources transmitted before the eligibility requirements are met are reported as advances by the provider and deferred
revenue by the recipient.

12. Expenditures

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred.

13. Inferfund Activity

Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of its operatibns, transactions occur between and within individual funds that may result in amounts owed
between funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements:
Transaction of a buyer/seller nature between and within governmental funds and internal service funds are eliminated from the

governmental activities in the statements of net assets. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities
and business-type activities are reported in the statement of net assets as “internal balances”.

37



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

June 30, 2007

NOTE 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
E. Financial Statement Amounts (Continued)

13. Interfund Activity (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements:

Transaction of a buyer/seller nature between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund statements. Receivables
and payables resulting from these transactions are classified as “due from other funds” or “due to other funds” on the balance sheet.

Interfund Transfers

During the course of its operations, resources are permanently reallocated between and within funds. These transactions are
reported as transfers in and transfers out.

Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Transfers between and within governmental funds and internal service funds are not eliminated from the governmental activities
in the statement of net assets. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental and business-type activities are
reported in the statement of activities are as “transfers, net”.

Fund Financial Statements:

Transfers between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund statements and are reported as “transfers in and
transfers out”.

14. Claims and Judgments

The City is uninsured with respect to risks including, but not limited to, property damages, personal injury and workers’
compensation. In the fund financial statements, expenditures for claims and judgments are recorded on the basis of whether the
liability has matured in the current period. Expenditures for workers’ compensation are recorded when paid. Settlements relating
to condemnation proceedings are reported when the liability is estimable. In the government-wide financial statements the
estimated liability for all claims and judgments is recorded as a liability and as an expense.

15. Use of Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

16. Fund Deficit and Appropriation Deficits

Several individual fund deficits existed at June 30, 2007 in the governmental funds. These deficits will be funded by future
administration plans; bond issues and available fund balances.

Actual expenditures exceeded appropriations for various departments at June 30, 2007. This over-appropriation will be funded
through available funds during the fiscal year 2008.
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NOTE I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

F. Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from providing services and producing and delivering
goods and/or services. It also includes all revenues and expenses not related to capital and related financing, noncapital
financing, or investing activities.

NOTE 2: Compliance and Accountability

Budget Requirements, Accounting and Reporting

Requirements for all funds:

A,

Annual budgets are adopted for all City funds. Under state law, the Mayor submits an annual budget to Council for
consideration and approval no later than July 15. Such budget is based on expected expenditures by program within
a fund and estimated resources by source for all funds.

By Charter the Mayor must submit an annual appropriate ordinance to City Council. This ordinance builds upon the
tax budget of the previous July and is updated for any estimated revisions as well as year-end encumbrances and may
include any additional information requested by Council. Council may subsequently amend such ordinance.
Amendments to the appropriation ordinance during 2007 were approved by the City Council as provided by the
Charter.

For day-to-day management control, expenditures plus encumbrances may not exceed the budget at the expenditure-
type (i.¢., personal services, other operations and maintenance, etc.) level of each cost center (activity within a program
within a fund). The Mayor may transfer unencumbered appropriations within programs within funds.

Appropriation control (City Council appropriate budget) is by program (i.e., safety, leisure, health, etc.) within a fund.
City Council may, by ordinance, transfer amounts among programs within and between funds, Budgetary comparison
schedules are presented in the Supplemental Section as Required Supplemental Information. The budgetary basis is
the modified accrual basis of accounting with encumbrances included as actual expenditures.
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NOTE 2: Compliance and Accountability (Continued)

Interfund Transactions

The interfund activity presented below is for the fund statement level only. These balances include both due from/to other funds
and intra-entity receivables and payables. :

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund

Wastewater Funds

Stabilization Funds

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Capital Projects
Special Revenue Funds
Permanent Funds
Proprictary Funds
Internal Service Funds
Water
Airport
Fiduciary Funds
Agency
Private Purpose Trust Funds
Component Units
Redevelopment Authority
Harbor Development

Totals

Due from Due to Other Financing
Other Funds  Other Funds Sources

$ 5,544,716 $ 3,542,375 $ 620,954
26,315 3,000,507 89,128
3,211,200 3,207,755
42,157 4271 887,970
226,920 116,213 111,968

3,388

9,616

163,941

191,985 14,054
2,001

1,247,217

11,912 1,336,796
$ 9264821 $ 9.264.821 $ 3,083,717

.. Other Financing
Uses

$ 4,403,462
15,000

274,283
489

140,483

250,000

§ 5,083,717

In addition to the sources and uses above, $5,571,954 was recorded as a source for water enterprise for capital assets purchased
from capital project funds classitied as governmental activities for the government wide financial statements.
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NOTE 2: Compliance and Accountability (Continued)

For the government-wide financial statements, all interfund transactions were eliminated except for those with component units

and fiduciary funds.

The City utilizes the interfund loan accounts as a short term vehicle to expedite the payment of vouchers from a consolidated

vendor checking account.

The fransfers between funds are to fund operations for the airport and water funds; to fund matching revenues related to federal
grants; to fund and utilize funding for operations in the Stabilization fund and to fund various other immaterial deficits in Special

Revenue and Community Development funds.

Reserved:
Encumbrances
Nonexpendable bequests
Petty cash
Debt premiums
Inventory
Renewal and replacement

Debt service

Designated:
Designated for appropriation deficits
Designated for revenue deficits

Unreconciled cash difference

Business Type
Governmental Funds Activities
General Trust
Fund Wastewater -Fund Water
$ 106,019 $ § $
5,102,411
1,250
79,875
56,437
1,503,901
2,900,262
187,144 4,460,600 5,102,411
{ 114,364)
( 25,715)
1,166,536
1,052,172 { 25,71%)
$ 1,239.316 $ 4.460,600 $5,102.411 5 ( 25.715)
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NOTE 3: Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2007 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

Cash and investments - Governmental Activities $ 59,934,577
Cash and investments - Business Type Activities _ 1,882,004
Cash and investments - Pension Trust Fund 225,514,157
Cash and investments - City Private Purpose Trust Funds 18,173
Cash and investments - Agency Funds 4,734,941
Total cash and investments $ 292.083.852

Cash and cash Equivalents

Deposits are in various financial institutions and are carried at cost or fair value in the case of pooled deposits for trust
funds. The carrying value is separately displayed on the state of net assets as “Cash and Investments”. Petty cash is
included in the presentation of cash on the statement of net assets in the amount of $2,676 on June 30, 2007,

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of failure of a depository financial institution, a government
will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party.

At year end, the City’s carrying amount of deposits for the primary government private purpose trust funds and the -

agency funds was $51,369,439, including $2,626 of petty cash and the bank balance was $60,688,388. Of the bank
balance $1,207,560 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance and $27,728,130 was covered by Depositors Insurance
Fund. The remaining balance of $31,727,654 was held in uncollateralized accounts,

At year end fhe City’s carrying amount of deposits for the pension trust fund was $4,166,698 and the bank balance was
$5,205,488. Of the bank balance $300,006 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance. The remaining balance of
$4,850,756 was held in uncollateralized accounts,

The City has not experienced any losses of funds in excess of federally insured limits held in any financial institutions,
Management fees that the City is not exposed to any significant credit risk related to cash.

Investments

Investments are stated at fair value for investment pools and historical costs for all other investments. The majority of
investments activity are conducted through contracted investment management firms and held in pooled trust fund
accounts in the City’s name.

Credit risk is the rigk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill it obligation to the holder of the investment. This
is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.. See below for ratings
of the investments held by the City of New Bedford a of June 30, 2007.

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the City’s investment in a single issuer. The
investments listed below were issued by various financial institutions, See below for investments that represent 5% or
more of the total investments held by the City of New Bedford as of June 30, 2007.
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NOTE 3: Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interesi rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment, Generally,
the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that where exchange rates effect the valuation of an investment. The amount of investments whlch

include foreign investments are listed below.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values ofthe City’s investments to market rate fluctuations is provided by the following
table that show the distribution of the City’s investments by maturity utilizing the specific identification method:

Total Investments by Investment Type and Moody Ratings

Investment Type

*®

Primary Government, Private Purpose and Agency Funds

Fixed income securities
Corporate income
Fixed income securities
Corporate fixed income
Municipal bonds

Fixed income securities
Corporate fixed income
Government securifies
Fixed income securities
Common stock
Common stock - foreign
Mutual funds - fixed
Mutual funds - equity
Fixed income - bond mutual funds
Certificate of deposit

Subtotal

Maximum
Maximum Investment in Moody
Total Amount Maturity One Issuer Rating
b 48,325 3 years N/A A2
719,400 . 5 years ‘ N/A A2
51,555 4 years N/A AAl
871,083 49 years 5.73% AA2
1,800,000 ¢ 1 year N/A AAA
2,351,063 7 years 6.35% AAA
964,060 39 years 5.01% AAA
9,712 16 years N/A N/A
1,006,425 28 years N/A N/A
5,019,122 N/A ' 7.99% N/A
15,311 N/A N/A N/A
52,979 N/A N/A N/A
38,773 N/A N/A N/A
1,932,821 N/A N/A N/A
319,627 2 years _ N/A Unrated
$ 15.200.256
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Maximum
Maximum Investment in Moody

Investment Type Total Amount Maturity One Issuer Rating
Pension Trust Fund
Bond Paying Periodic Income $ 109,250 11 years N/A Al
Bond Paying Periodic Income 337,875 43 years N/A A2
Bond Paying Periodic Income 667,394 30 years N/A A3
Bond Paying Periodic Income 530,014 27 years N/A AAl
Bond Paying Periodic Income 2,106,039 2 years N/A AA2
Bond Paying Periodic Income 207,183 43 years N/A . AA3
Bond Paying Periodic Income 7,935,831 27 years N/A AAA
Bond Paying Periodic Income 3,048,367 25 years N/A B1
Bond Paying Periodic Income 400,600 ' 23 years N/A B2
Bond Paying Periodic Income 549,660 14 years N/A B3
Bond Paying Periodic Income 606,943 29 years N/A BAI
Bond Paying Periodic Income 675,625 22 years N/A BA2
Bond Paying Periodic Income 995,556 23 years N/A BA3
Bond Paying Periodic Income 2,018,483 60 years N/A BAAI1
Bond Paying Periodic Income 2,346,501 43 years N/A BAA2
Bond Paying Periodic Income 2,723,363 60 years N/A BAA3
Bond Paying Periodic Income 497,237 21 years N/A CAA1l
Bond Paying Periodic Income 17,675 2 years N/A CAA2
Bond Paying Periodic Income 41,513 4 years N/A CAA3
Bond Paying Periodic Income 2,812,013 6 years N/A N/A
Bond Paying Periodic Income 857,426 7 years N/A N/A
Bond Paying Periodic Income 654,667 23 years N/A Unrated
CMO 158,382 30 years N/A _ A3
CMO 5,616,585 39 years N/A AAA
CMO 612,777 27 years N/A Bl
CMO 6,433,739 40 years N/A N/A
CMO 264,369 30 years N/A Unrated
Common Stock 104,720,983 N/A N/A N/A
Master Limited Partnership 170,424 N/A N/A N/A
Mortgage Passthrough Pool 1,482,265 30 years N/A N/A
Other Assets 32,890,951 - N/A 14.74% N/A
Pooled Equities - Capital 16,600,047 N/A N/A N/A
Pooled Real Estate 21,669,256 N/A N/A N/A
Preferred Stock 618,634 N/A N/A N/A
REIT 206,167 N/A N/A N/A
REMIC 153,913 27 years N/A N/A

Subtotal $221,737.707

Total City of New Bedford $236,937,963

* Maximum investment in one issuer labeled as N/A are less than 5% of total investments for any single issues within
that category.
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Total Investments by Investment Type and S&P Ratings

Maximum
Maximum Investment in S&P

Investment Type Total Amount Maturity One Issuer Rating
Primary Government, Private Purpose and Agency Funds
Fixed income securities 3 48,325 3 years N/A A
Corporate fixed income 719,400 5 years N/A A
Corporate fixed income 871,083 49 years 5.73% At
Fixed income securities 51,555 1 year N/A AA+
Municipal bonds 1,800,000 7 years N/A AAA
Fixed income securities 2,351,062 9O years 6.35% AAA
Government securities 1,096 16 years N/A N/A
Government securifies 8,616 28 years N/A N/A
Fixed income securities 1,006,425 N/A N/A N/A
Common stock 5,019,124 N/A 7.99% N/A
Common stock - foreign 15,311 N/A N/A N/A
Mutual funds - fixed 52,979 N/A N/A N/A
Mutual funds - equity 49,931 N/A N/A N/A
Fixed income - bond mutual funds 1,921,662 N/A N/A N/A
Certificate of deposit 319,627 2 years N/A Unrated
Corporate fixed income 964.060 39 years 5.01% Unrated

Subtotal $ 15.200.256

 Pension Trust Fund

Bond Paying Periodic Income $ 1,372,248 43 years N/A A-
Bond Paying Periodic Income 414,003 43 years N/A A
Bond Paying Periodic Income 108,250 11 years N/A A+
Bond Paying Periodic Income 1,056,676 10 years N/A AA-
Bond Paying Periodic Income 1,530,006 7 years N/A AA
Bond Paying Periodic Income 397,560 27 years N/A AA+
Bond Paying Periodic Income 8,017,867 25 years N/A AAA
Bond Paying Periodic Income 474,509 21 years N/A B-
Bond Paying Periodic Income 1,167,420 25 years N/A B
Bond Paying Periodic Income 1,979,885 25 years N/A B+
Bond Paying Periodic Income 1,108,500 22 years N/A BB-
Bond Paying Periodic Income 334,644 20 years N/A BB
Bond Paying Periodic Income 1,150,534 30 years N/A BB+
Bond Paying Periodic Income 1,976,366 59 years N/A BBB-
Bond Paying Periodic Income 2,042,589 60 years N/A BBB
Bond Paying Periodic Income 2,912,850 43 years N/A BBB+
Bond Paying Periodic Income 41,512 4 years N/A CCC
Bond Paying Petiodic Income 245,000 17 years N/A CCC+
Bond Paying Periodic Income 1,960,599 43 years N/A N/A
Bond Paying Periodic Income 1,418,652 15 years N/A Unrated
Bond Paying Periodic Income 335,920 27 years N/A Unrated
Bond Paying Periodic Income 92,625 39 years N/A Unrated
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Maximum
Maximum Investment in S&P

Investment Type Total Amount Maturity One Issuer Rating
Primary Government, Private Purpose and Agency Funds
CMO 649 29 years N/A A-
CMO 158,382 30 years N/A A
CMO 120,180 29 years N/A AA
CMO 8,165,938 40 years N/A- AAA
CMO 349,125 11 years N/A B
CMO 263,652 27 years N/A BB-
CMO 95,364 12 years N/A D
CMO 54,427 6 years N/A N/A
CMO 3,878,136 38 years N/A Unrated
Common Stock 12,613,136 N/A N/A A-
Common Stock 9,336,886 N/A N/A A
Common Stock 8,502,041 N/A N/A At
Common Stock 6,986,424 N/A N/A B-
Common Stock 17,232,156 N/A N/A B
Common Stock 26,687,005 N/A N/A B+
Common Stock ) 2,728,002 N/A N/A C
Common Stock 1,499,214 N/A : N/A N/A
Common Stock 19,136,119 N/A N/A Unrated
Master Limited Pattnership 170,424 N/A N/A Unrated
Mortgage Passthrough Pool 1,482,265 30 years N/A Unrated
Other Assets 32,890,950 N/A 14.74% N/A
Pooled Equities - Capital 16,600,047 N/A N/A N/A
Pooled Real Estate 21,069,256 N/A N/A N/A
Preferred Stock 238,125 N/A N/A A-
Preferred Stock 35,161 N/A N/A BBB-
Preferred Stock 325,348 N/A ' N/A N/A
REIT 206,167 " N/A N/A Unrated
REMIC 153,913 27 years N/A N/A

Subtotal $221,737,707

Total City of New Bedford $236,937,963

* Maximum investment in one issuer labeled as N/A are less than 5% of total investments for any single issues within
that category.
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NOTE 3: Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (Continued)

Investment Type

Foreign Currency Risk

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Primary Government, Private Purpose and Agency Funds

Common stock - foreign
Common stock - foreign
Common stock - foreign

Total

Foreign Currency Risk

Pension Trust Fund

Bond Paying Periodic Income
Bond Paying Periodic Income
Bond Paying Periodic Income
Bond Paying Periodic Income
Bond Paying Periodic Income
Bond Paying Periodic Income
Bond Paying Periodic Income
Bond Paying Periodic Income
Bond Paying Periodic Income
Bond Paying Periodic Income
CMO

CMO

Common stock

Common stock

Common stock
Common stock

Common stock
Common stock

Total

Total Amount Description
$ 7,214 BP PLC
5,237 Glaxosmithkline PLC
2,860 Taiwan Semiconductor Mfg LTD
$ 15,311
281,358 Aruba Arpt Auth Bd
171,834 Brit Columbia Prov CA
982,097 British Columbia
378,917 Canadian Government
737,172 Government of Canada
999,261 Mexican Bonds
425,625 Philippine Long Dist
934,797 Province of Manitoba
1,171,242 Provinée of Ontario
58 Province of Alberta
54,426 Rep of Argentina
263,652 Rep of Uruguay
670,560 Credit Suisse Group -
Sponsored ADR
27,940 Credit Suisse Group -
Sponsored ADR
548,700 Elan Corp Plc - Sponsored ADR
206,456 Melco Pbl Entertainment
Ltd ADR
261,072 Teva Pharmaceutical Inds -
Spon ADR

315.629

$ 843079

Toyota Motor Corp 2 Com ADR
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Note 4: Property Tax

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

June 30, 2007

Real estate and personal property taxes are based on values assessed as of each January 1. Taxes due and unpaid after the
respective dates are subject to inferest and penalties. The City has the right to begin the lien process on property on which taxes
have not been paid after one year following the due date and subsequently foreclose on such property.

Real estate, personal property and other excise tax levies are recorded as receivables and revenue in the fiscal year of the levy.
Also, any amounts collected within 60 days after year-end are considered revenue. Taxes collected in advance is considered

deferred revenue.

Note 5: Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2007 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Not Being Depreciated:

Land
Construction in progress
Infrastructure in progress

Subtotal
Other Capital Assets:

Infrastructure

Land improvements

Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Office equipment and furniture
Computer equipment

Library books and textbooks
Automobiles

Animals

Subtotal
Accumulated Depreciation:

Infrastructure

Land improvements

Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Office equipment and furniture
Computer equipment

Library books and textbooks
Automobiles

Animals

Subtotal
Net other capital assets

Net capital assets

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
$ 702,289 % 177,605 % $ 879,894
79,989,444 10,138,091 64,494,380 25,633,155
12.422.874 2,596,853 10,143,215 4,876,512
93,114,607 12,912,549 74,637,595 31,389,561
122,035,216 15,336,827 137,372,043
22,421 22,421
206,929,759 61,309,532 268,239,291
37,716,023 1,616,836 39,332,859
11,132,747 1,204,073 12,336,820
4,689,992 2,491,788 7,181,780
7,698,710 1,197,487 8,896,197
6,239,584 72,364 6,311,948
53,759 53,759
396,495,790 83,251,328 479.747.118
96,910,002 1,907,835 98,817,837
- 519 519
64,174,320 4,737,087 68,911,407
27,361,338 1,730,702 29,092,040
9,873,120 643,889 10,517,009
2,139,480 1,587,149 3,726,629
5,985,741 864,290 6,850,031
5,089,967 434,056 5,524,023
16,597 3,309 19,906
211,550,565 11,208,836 223.459.401
184,945,225 71 .342,492. 256,287,717

$278.059.832 § 84,255,041

$74,637.595 3 287,677,278
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June 30, 2007

Note 5: Capital Assets and Depreciation (continued)

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2007 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-Type Activities - Water:
Not Being Depreciated:
Infrastructure in progress $ 6225034 % 1439613 §$ 1,375354 § 06,289,293
Easements 962,500 962,500
Subtotal 6,225,034 2,402,113 1,375,354 7.251,793
Other Capital Assets:
Infrastructure 67,714,121 5,507,695 73,221,816
Buildings and improvements 48,811 48,811
Machinery and equipment 872,217 163,075 1,035,292
Office equipment and furniture 71,255 71,255
Computer equipment 10,648 10,648
Automobiles 461,411 4,000 465411
Subtotal 69,178,463 3,674,770 74,853,233
Accumulated Depreciation:
Infrastructure 33,370,969 1,518,871 34,889,840
Buildings and improvements 802 976 1,778
Machinery and equipment 712,428 37,451 749,879
Office equipment and furniture 58,124 4,135 62,259
Computer equipment 3,376 3,549 6,925
Automobiles 261,230 47438 308,668
Subtotal 34,406,929 1,612,420 36,019,349
Net other capital assets 34,771,534 4,062,350 38,833,884
Net capital assets $ 40996568 § 6464463 $ 1375354 $_ 46,085,677
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2007

Note 5: Capital Assets and Depreciation (continued)

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2007 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-Type Activities - Airport:
Not Being Depreciated:
Land $ 135,522 $ $ $ 135,522
Subtotal 135,522 135,522
Other Capital Assets:
Land improvements 2,312 2,312
Buildings and improvements 2,215,551 23,000 2,238,551
Machinery and equipment 676,064 676,064
Office equipment and furniture 4.640 516 5.156
Subtotal 2,898,567 23,516 2,922,083
Accumulated Depreciation;
Land improvements 983 106 1,089
Buildings and improvements 453,178 39,631 492,809
Machinery and equipment 355,306 37,203 392,509
Office equipment and furniture 3,579 355 3.934
Subtotal 813.046 77,295 890,341
Net other capital assets 2,085,521 {53779 2,031,742
Net capital assets $§ 2221043 $( 537719 % $  2.167.264
Depreciation was charged to functions as follows:
Governmental activities:
General Government 5 340,262
Public Safety 1,311,725
Education 6,780,234
Public Works 2,601,239
Community and Economic Development 53,724
Health and Human Services 204,280
Culture and Recreation 617,372
Business-Type activities:
Water 1,612,420
Airport 77,295
Total Governmental Activities Depreciation Expense $ 13,598,551

* The beginning balance has been restated, Refer to restatement note for explanation.
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NOTE 6: Pensions and Other Post Employment Benefits

The City of New Bedford contributes to the City of New Bedford's Contributory Employees' Retirement System, which
is a single-employer public employee retirement system (PERS), as established under Chapter 32 of the General Laws
of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

Effective January 1, 1996, the Contributory Retirement System of the City of New Bedford adopted Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 25 ("GASB-25"): "Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans
and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans." GASB-25 is intended to enhance the understandability and
usefulness of pension information included in the financial reports of state and local governmental pension plans.

Effective July 1, 1998, Chapter 17 of the Acts of 1997 (COLA Legislation) was adopted. The result of the adoption of
Chapter 17 is to increase the retirement allowance pension or annuity by the percentage as determined by the
Commissioner of Social Security or 3%, whichever is less. The maximum pension benefit on which a COLA may be
granted is $12,000. All retirees, disabled retirees and beneficiaries that have been receiving benefit payments for at least
one year as of July 1st are eligible for the adjustment.

- All COLA's granted to members prior to July 1, 1998 and after 1981 are deemed to be an obligation of the State and are
not the liability of the Retirement System.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting

The City of New Bedford's Contributory Employees' Retirement System's financial statements are prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due.
Employer contributions to each Plan are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to
provide the contributions, Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of
each plan.

Investment income is recognized as earned by the pension plan. The net appreciation (depreciation) in the fair value of
invesiments held by the pension plan is recorded as a increase {decrease) to investment income based on the valuation
of investments as of the balance sheet date.

The City accepted Section 22(1)(b1/2) of Chapter 32 of the Massachusetts General Laws in 1990. The City must
establish a funding schedule designed to fully fund the retirement system and to reduce the unfunded actuarial accrued
liability of the system to zero as of June 30, 2028. Any system for which a funding schedule has been adjusted and
approved may receive annual pension funding grants from the Commonwealth.

Operating Cycle

The accounting records of the Retirement System are maintained on a calendar year basis in accordance with the
standards and procedures established by the Commissioner of Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission.

51



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to Financial Statements {Continued)

June 30, 2007

NOTE 6: Pensions and Other Post Employment Benefits (Continued)
Method Used to Value Assets

Cash deposits are carried at cost which approximates market. Investments in bonds and notes are stated at amortized
cost which approximates market. Investments in stock are recorded at market value.

Plan Description

All full-time employees, other than teachers, whose employment commences prior to age sixty-five are eligible to
participate in the City of New Bedford's Confributory Employees' Retirement System. Teachers and certain
administrative employees of the School Department participate in a contributory retirement plan administered by the
Massachusetts Teachers' Retirement Board. The City does not contribute to this plan.

The Retirement Board exercises jurisdiction to determine an employee's eligibility for membership in cases involving
part time service. The participants contribute specified percentages of their annual compensation to the plan. The City's
coniribution is determined by the Division of Public Employee Retirement Administration ("PERA") on a cost of benefits
approach and, for the year ended June 30, 2007, was $20,881,189.

As of December 31, 2006, employee membership data related to the pension plan was as follows:

Group 1 Group2 &4 _Total

Active members 1,786 489 2,275
Inactive members 310 | 14 324
Retired members 1.140 584 1,724
3.236 1,087 4,323

Under the provisions of the City's pension plan, pension benefits vest afier ten years of creditable service. If the
employees ate terminated involuntarily, benefits vest afier six years of creditable service if the employee became a
member of a public employee retirement system before January 1, 1978. An employee may retire at age 55 and receive
annual pension benefits. The pension plan also provides for death and disability benefits. Anemployee's annual pension
is determined by multiplying his average salary by a benefit rate related to his age and job classification at retirement
and the resulting product by his creditable years of employment service. His average salary is the average of his highest
three consecutive years' salary or the average salary from his last three years of service, if not consecutive. For most
employees, the average of the last three years' salary will be their highest average salary. The amount determined by the
benefit formula cannot exceed 80% of the employee's average salary as described above.
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' NOTE 6: Pensions and Other Post Employment Benefits (Continued)
Retirement Groups
For retirement purposes employees are classified as Group 1, 2 or 4 employees:

Group 1 Officials and general employees including clerical, administrative and technical workers, laborers,
mechanics and all others not otherwise classified. Participants within this group are eligible to retire
at age 55.

Group 2 Elecfricians not classified in Group I or 4. Participants within this group are eligible to retire at age
55.

Group 4 Members of police, fire and electric light departments not classified in Group 1 or 2. Participants
within this group are eligible to retire at age 45.

Funding Policy

Under provisions of State statutes, each employee is required to contribute 5% of his basic pay (exclusive of overtime)
to a special fund. For certain employees without continuous service who are reemployed on or after January 1, 1973 and
for all employees hired on or after January 1, 1975 but prior to 1984, the contribution rate is 7%. For employees hired
from 1984 through June 30, 1996 the contribution rate is 8%. For employees hired after July 1, 1996 the contribution
rate is 9%. For all employees hired on or after January 1, 1979 there is an additional contribution of 2% of salary in
excess of $30,000. In addition, the City must provide annual contributions sufficient to satisfy the actuarially determined
confribution requirements as mandated by state statutes. Administrative costs of the Retirement System are financed
through investment earnings.

The most recent actuatial valuation of the City's Contributory Retirement System was prepared under the direction of
Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC) as of January 1, 2007, The standardized measure
of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability as of January 1, 2007, is as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability:
January 1, 2007

(unaudited)

Active members $ 208,649,221
Retirees, beneficiaries, disabilities and inactives

currently receiving benefits 260,412,530
Cost of living adjustment
Total actuarial accrued liability 469,061,751
Net assets available for benefits, at market . 210,446,468
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability 3 258615283
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NOTE 6: Pensions and Other Post Employment Benefits (Continued)
Contributions Required and Contributions Made

Periodic employer contributions to the pension plan are determined on an actoarial basis using the entry age normal
actuarial cost methed. Normal cost is funded on a current basis. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is funded over
a 30-year period. Periodic contributions for both normal cost and the amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued
liability are based on the level percentage of payroll on an open group method. The remaining amortization period at
December 31, 1998, was 29 years, The funding strategy for normal cost and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability
should provide sufficient resources to pay employee pension benefits on a timely basis.

Total contributions to the pension plan in 2006 amounted to $25,587,182 of which $18,848,697 and $6,738,485 were
made by the City of New Bedford and its employees, respectively. The contributed amounts were actuarially determined
as described above on a fiscal year basis. For year 2006 the contribution amount of $18,848,697 was based on an-
actuarial valuation as of Januvary 1, 2006. The pension contributions represent funding for normal cost and the
amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. Contributions made by the City of New Bedford and its
employees represent 24% and 9% respectively, of covered payroll for the year,

The covered payroll for the Contributory Retirement System for the year ending December 31, 2006 was approximately
$77,004,701. The City's total payroll for all employees was approximately $163,317,254 for the same period. Covered
payroll refers to all compensation paid by the City to active employees covered by the City of New Bedford PERS on
which contributions to the pension are based.

The Massachusetts Retirement Board contributed $20,881,189 for benefits *“on-behalf” of the school department. The
amount was recorded as revenue and as an expenditures in the general fund in accordance with GASB-24,

The computation of the pension contribution requirements for 2006 was based on the same () actuarial assumptions,
(b) benefit provisions, and © other significant factors as used fo determine pension contribution requirements in the
previous year.

Trend Information

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Net assets available for benefits as a
percentage of the actuarial accrued
liability applicable to the City's
employees 44.9% 46.1% 46.1% 51.4% 51.4% 51.4%

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability
as a percentage of the City's annual
covered payroll 335.8% 255.4% 247.9% 179.2% 204.1% 198.0%

City's contribution to the pension

plan as a percentage of annual ‘
covered payroll 24.5% 20.8% 18.7% 17.6% 19.1% 26.5%
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NOTE 7: Other Employee Benefits
Other Postemployment Benefits

In addition to the pension benefits described above, the City provides health and life insurance benefits to retirees, their
dependents and beneficiaries in accordance with Chapter 32B of Massachusetts General Laws under various contributory
plans. Specific benefit provisions and contribution rates are established by collective-bargaining agreements, state laws,
and City ordinance.

NOTE 8: Other Commitments

The City of New Bedford and DWDA/New Directions has entered into various operating leases for real property,
machinery and equipment. Several leases contain a renewal option for varying periods at similar or reduced annual rates.
As of June 30, 2007, future minimum rental payments under operating leases that have initial or remaining
noncancellable lease terms are immaterial.

NOTE 9: Contingencies

There are several lawsuits and claims in which the City is involved. Both City officials and their legal counsel are unable
to express an opinion as to the ultimate outcome of all the cases, and therefore the provision for loss has not been accrued
in the accompanying financial statements. It is the opinion of both the City officials and their legal counsel that the
results of these cases should have no material adverse effect on the financial position as of June 30, 2007.

Wastewater Capital Improvement Program

To date, the City has financed the Wastewater Capital Improvement Program, through direct loans from the
Massachusetts Water Pollution Trust totaling approximately $151 million, which loans were secured by the issuance of
City Revenue Bonds pursuant to the General Resolution. In addition to the Trust loans, the City also has issued general
obligation bond anticipation notes to finance those projects in the Wastewater Capital Improvement Program that are
not eligible for financing from the Trust under Federal and Massachusetts law. Such bond anticipation notes will be
repaid through general obligation bonds of the City or additional ¢ity revenue bonds.

In addition, the City anticipates that it may receive funding from certain state and federal grants and from the settlement
of environmental Superfund lifigation between the EPA. and other parties (nof including the City) related to the City's
Inner Harbor.

The residual cost of the facility to be funded through user fees and tax levy cannot presently be determined. No provision
for any liability that may result has been made in the basic financial statements.

The City of New Bedford has signed a consent decree with the Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA"),
Commonwealth of Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection ("DEP") and the Conservation Law
foundation concerning the construction of waste freatment facilities, the reduction of combined sewer overflows and
compliance with certain provisions of the Clean Water Act{the "Act"). The consent decree required, among other things,
the building and full operation of a Secondary Treatment Plant by January 19, 1997. Based upon final specifications
and the City's recommended plan for compliance, the City has estimated that total construction costs for the waste
treatment program will be approximately $193.2 million based on present day construction costs.
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NOTE 9: Contingencies (Continued)
Sullivan's Ledge Escrow Fund

The City has received notice from the EPA that it may be liable, along with several third parties jointly and severally,
for costs associated with the clean-up of pollutants at Sullivan's Ledge. Management has indicated that the City's
liability for the clean-up of this dump site will be $600,000 for the Sullivan's Ledge Middle Marsh area (Operable Unit
#2), broken down into payments of $300,000 in fiscal 1998 and $300,000 in fiscal 1998 plus $30,000 for fencing in fiscal
1993. For Operable Unit #1, negotiations are currently in progress. Settlement was reached with the government in
November 1994 to provide maintenance at site. The City has agreed to appropriate in an escrow account $15,000 per
year beginning in fiscal 1998 for thirty years as financial security.

- Operation and maintenance of the following activities beginning in year 1 for 30 years:

Yearly 30 Year Total
Treatment Plant $ 227,000 $ 6,825,000
Cap Maintenance 7,720 512,000
Fence Maintenance and Repair 2,400 159,000
Traffic Control (2 years) 50,000 100.000

287,120 7,596,000
City Commitment to Private Parties

The City will put $700,000 into an interest bearing account that is exclusively available to the Group in the event that
the City fails to adequately perform its in-kind service obligations. This $700,000 would be deposited into the escrow
on the following schedule: $300,000 on July 1, 1998 and $100,000 on July 1 of each consecutive year for four years,
The principal and interest would remain in the account for 15 years. The City could then annyally draw down the escrow
in 1/15 increments.

NOTE 10: Lease Revenues

The City of New Bedford leases property on Hathaway Road to Johnson Turf and Golf Management, Inc. Areas of the
land were designated part of the Sullivan Ledge Superfund site, as determined by the Environmental Protection Agency,
The lease is for 35 years and began March 24, 2000 and is for $120,000 per year less a credit of $5,333 for unanticipated
water consumption costs. In addition, this fee can be abated for individuals who had a membership to- play at the
Whaling City Golf Course during the 1999 calendar year up to a sum of $100,000. The remaining fee will be adjusted
annually by the consumer price index beginning in 2005.

The land was leased for the operation of an 18 hole public golf course. As stated in the lease agreement, the Whaling
City Golf course is required to submit to the City of New Bedford, a certified annua! audit of the financial records. An
audit was not performed during 2006, however, the Golf course anticipates submitting a complete set of audited financial
statements to the City for 2006.
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NOTE 11: Joint Venture

The City of New Bedford, the Harbor Development Commission, and the Redevelopment Authority have joined in an
agreement with the Whale’s Tooth Parking Lot. The City of New Bedford owns this parcel of land and has bought all
lighting and fixtures associated with the parking lot. The agreement between the parties is that the Harbor Development
Commission will operate the parking lot and collect all parking lot revenues and will pay for all expenditures associated
with the parking lot. When profits are generated from the parking lot operations, the Harbor Development Commission
will begin to pay back the City of New Bedford for the fixtures and equipment that the City placed into service to operate
the parking lot. Five percent of any revenue over budgeted expenditures will be remitted to the Redevelopment Authority
for their involvement in the project.

NOTE 12: Debt

Primary Government
Under state law and by authorization of the City Council, the City is authorized to borrow on a temporary basis to fund
the following:
L] Current operating costs prior to the collection of revenues through the issuance of revenue or tax
anticipation notes (RANS or TANS);

L] Special Revenue, capital projects and enterprise fund costs incurred prior to obtaining permanent
financing through the issuance of bond anticipation notes (BANS) and

L] Federal and state aided capital projects and other program expenditures prior to receiving
reimbursement through the issuance of federal and state aid anticipation notes (FAANS and SAANS).
The City issued a $7,470,000 Bond Anticipation Note, dated June 7, 2007, maturing February 15, 2008. This note was

issued for the Railroad Depot.

The City issued a $3,031,944 Bond Anticipation Note, dated June 7, 2007, maturing February 15, 2008. This note was
issued for the Keith Middle School.

The City issued a$15,707,000 Bond Anticipation Note, dated August 18, 2006, maturing September 28, 2006, This note
was issued for the following:

$ 15,477,000 Normadin Middle School $ 230,000 River Road

The City issued a $14,143,884 Bond Anticipation Note, dated September 29, 2006, maturing February 16, 2007. This
note was issued for the following:

$ 320,000 DeValles School $ 255,000 Landfill
$ 6,449,944 Normandin Middle School $ 2,000,000 Building Purchase
$ 1,473,940 Keith Middle School $ 3,400,000 DPI Sewer Project

$ 245,000  Land Acquisition
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NOTE 12: Debt (Continued)
Short-Term Debt

The City issued a $2,03 1,944 Bond Anticipation Note, dated February 16,2007, maturing June 14, 2007, This note was
issued for the Keith Middle School.

The City issued a $19,258,000 Bond Anticipation Note, dated February 16, 2007, maturing February 15, 2008. This
note was issued for the following;

$ 8,958,000 Sewer $ 1,800,000 Landfill Closure
$ 8,500,000 Sea Lab Facility

The City issued a $5,000,000 Bond Anticipation Note, dated February 16, 2007 maturing February 15, 2008. This note
was issued for the Railroad Depot.

Long-Term Debt
Prior Year Defeasance of Debt

In the prior year, the City defeased certain general obligation and other bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in
an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust assets and
the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the City’s financial statements. On June 30, 2007, $11.4 million
of bonds outstanding are considered defeased.

Assumptions

In November 2004 the City refunded and defeased in substance its outstanding 1995 and 1996 serial bonds of
$21,300,000, carrying an interest rate of 5.5 percent, with new debt of $11,400,000, issued at a weighted average rale
of 3.6 percent. The new debt is dated November 10, 2004. All issuance costs of the transaction were paid from bond

proceeds. Issuance costs were as follows:

Insurance (allowable and fully recoverable) through ESCrow

fund earnings $ 65,544
Underwriter’s discount (not allowable) 84,081
Financing costs (not allowable) 55.820

$ 205,445
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NOTE 12: Debt (Continued)
Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Sources and Uses of Funds

The sources and uses of funds required for the transaction are shown below:

Sources

Principal amount of the Bonds
Original issue premium
Accrued interest

Total sources

Uses

Purchase price of the SLGS

Beginning cash deposit to the escrow account
Underwriter’s discount

Bond insurance premium

Costs of issuance

Deposit of debt service fund

Contingency

Total uses

$ 11,400,000
263,655

44,142

$ 11,707,797

$ 11,451,173
1

84,081

65,543

55,820

44,143

7.036

$ 11,707,797
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

June 30, 2007
NOTE 12: Debt (Continued)
Debt service requirements to maturity for long-term debt:
Less: Total
Subsidized
Total Total Total Payments Total City

Principal Interest Debt (MWPAT) Debt Service
2008 $ 11,391,500 $ 10,211,974 $ 21,603,474 $ 6,709,003  § 14,804,471
2009 11,622,444 9,701,455 21,323,899 6,592,576 14,731,323
2010 11,439,632 9,206,827 20,646,459 6,470,161 14,176,298
201% 11,702,788 8,710,530 20,413,318 6,346,118 14,067,200
2012 11,827,806 8,168,862 19,996,668 6,213,561 13,783,107
2013 12,107,849 7,601,218 19,709,067 6,080,015 13,629,052
2014 12,451,951 7,003,254 19,455,205 5,942,738 13,512,467
2015 12,539,987 6,396,218 18,936,205 5,802,712 13,133,493
2016 12,898,642 5,772,468 18,671,110 5,654,051 13,017,059
2017 12,870,342 5,140,710 18,011,052 5,497,938 12,513,114
2018 12,615,461 4,550,356 17,165,817 5,367,636 11,798,181
219 12,992,393 3,959,110 16,951,503 5,229,204 11,722,299
2020 12,739,441 3,364,162 16,103,603 5,091,288 11,012,315
2021 12,511,613 2,768,076 15,279,689 4,946,428 10,333,261
2022 8,938,909 2,169,151 11,108,060 4,801,024 6,307,036
2023 9,166,333 1,763,734 10,930,067 4,647,900 6,282,167
2024 9,064,597 1,346,577 10,411,174 4,443,821 5,967,353
2025 9,280,589 880,466 10,161,055 4,306,472 5,854,583
2026 8,536,872 525,826 9,062,698 4,113,026 4,949,672
2027 701,225 131,884 833,109 121,471 711,638
2028 495,910 103,926 599,836 115,849 483,987
2029 511,182 83,528 594,710 110,068 484,642
2030 526,578 62,459 589,037 104,072 484,965
2031 537,099 40,849 577,948 93,138 484,810
2032 247,750 : 27,086 274,836 274,836
2033 253,532 21,303 274,835 274,835
2034 259,449 15,386 274,835 274,835
2035 265,505 9,331 274,836 274,836
2036 271,701 3,134 274,835 274,835

$ 220,769,080 § _99.739.860 § 320,508,940 $ 104800270 § 215708670

Authorized and unissued debt at June 30, 2007, is as follows:

Original FY 06 Issued/
Date Amount Amount FY 07 Retired Paid Net
Purpose Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorization Rescinded FY {7 Amount

Wastewater Treatment Facility 08/27/90 $ 14,000,000 § $ 5 3 $
Wastewater Treatment Facility 06/21/91 224,300,000
MWPAT DW-00-12 2,440,553
MWPAT DE-02-20;

DWSRF 1098 2,850,000
Urban Renewal - Q4/1R/00 875,000
Water 07724101 845,450
Landfill Closure 02/01/99 400,000
Normandin Middle School (5/01/00 39,200,000 39,200,000 { 38,641,279) ( 717 558,004
Keith Middte School 05/01/00 42,000,000 42,000,000 11,659,600 53,659,600
Acquisition of Land 12/01/00 1,150,000
Land Development 03/01/01 500,000 480,000 ( 265,000) 215,000
Normandin Middle School 08/01/01 11,659,600 11,659,600 ( 11,659,600)

- Keith Middle School 08/01/01 11,784,000 11,784,000 11,784,000

Parking Garage 01/02/02 1,000,000
Brooks Elementary School 05/01/02 17,000,000 17,000,000 ( 1,000,000} 16,000,000
Campbell Elementary/

Middle School 05/01/02 47,200,000 47,200,000 ( 1,499,535) ( 4635) 45,700,000
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2007

NOTE 12: Debt (Continued)

Original FY 06 Issued/
Date ' Amount Amount _ FY 07 Retired Paid Net
Purpose Authorized Authorized Authorized Authorization Rescinded FY 07 Amount

Winslow Elementary School 05/01/02 17,000,000 17,000,000 ’ { 1,000,000) 16,000,000
Lincoln Elementary School 05/01/02 20,600,000 20,600,000 { 1,000,0000 . 19,600,000
Harbor Dredging 05/01/02 3,000,600
Water Projects 07/01/02 8,455,000 2,178,748 (4233000 1,755,448
Landfill Closure 02/01/03 . 1,800,000 1,800,000 ' 1,800,000
Railroad Depot 03/01/03 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
DeValles Elementary School 06/01/03 11,000,000 11,000,000 (320,000} , 10,680,000
Sewer Separaticn 06/01/03 6,197,000 274,644 274,644
Building Acquisition - Zeiterion ~ 06/25/04 400,000
Building Renovations 06/25/04 1,150,000
Harbor Development Phase I

Dredging 06/25/04 1,170,000 200,000 200,000
Incubator/Building Renovatons 06/25/04 2,000,000 2,000,600 2,000,000
Railroad Depot 06/25/04 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
Equipment Purchases 06/25/04 2,800,000
Sea Lab 06/25/04 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000
West End Sewer Separation 06/25/04 21,608,000 21,008,000 21,008,000
Reconstructing & Paving Roads 06/25/04 1,000,000
Water Lining 06/25/04 4,205,000 4,205,000 . ( 4,205,000)
West End Sewer Project 08/14/04 8,958,000 8,958,000 8,958,000
Sea Lab 01/18/05 4,500,000 4,500,000 4,500,000
Street Paving 06/23/05 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000
West End Sewer Separation

Phase V 07727105 2,500,000 2,500,000 ( 2,209,971) 290,029
Mount Pleasant Street/Sawyer

Street Area Project 08/23/05 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000
Railroad Depot 06/22/06 7,470,000 7,470,000 7,470,000
Hannigan School 08/03/06 5,000,000 5,000,000 . 5,000,000
Water Mains Bonds 10/16/06 9,600,000 9,600,000 9,600,000
Water System Imp & Planning 10/16/06 4,650,000 4,650,000 4,650,000
School Bonds 12/01/06 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
Keith Middle School -

Contamination Cleanup 12/061/06 34,564,165 34,564,165 34,564,165
Airport Hanger & Leasehold 12/13/06 1,100,000 1,100,000 : 1,100,000

$618,431.768 §$348432.157 % $(50,564,085) ¥ 1,182) $ 297,866,890

The state subsidy for the school authorization is anticipated from the State Board of Education as part of the School Building Assistance Program.

Debt service requirements to maturity for short-term debt:

Total Total Total
Principal Interest Debt
2008 $ 45824915 $_ 1,553,519 § 47,378,434

Capital Leases

The City is obligated under certain leases accounted for as capital leases. The obligation for the Ieases are accounted for in the Government-Wide Financial
Statements as a governmental activity and a business-type activity. The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under capital leases.

Year Ending Governmental Business-Type Primary

June 30 Activities Activities Government
2008 $ 15,673 $ 62,310 $ 81,983
2009 4,474 4,474
2010 1,492 1,492
Minimum lease payments for all capital leases ' 25,639 62,310 87,949

Less: amount representing interest ( 1,831) { 3,117 { 4.948)

$ 23,808 3 59,193 b 83,001
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

NOTE 13: Fund Deficit

June 30, 2007

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

The foliowing individual funds had deficit fund equity balances as of June 30, 2007:

Capital Project Funds:

Condominium

2M Building Purchase
Normandin Middle School
Keith Middle School

2Mil Landfill Closure
Land Acquisition

Harbor Development Phase Il Dredging

500K Bond - River Road

DPI Sewer Project

$6 MIL Street Paving Project
Winslow Elementary School 17 Mil

Elizabeth Brooks Elementary School 17 Mil

Lincoln Elementary School 20.6 Mil
Campbell Elementary School 47.2 Mil
Water Mains

Railroad Depot

DeValles Bond Issue

Riverside Park

Water Transmission Main

Incubator Project

Sea Lab

Route 18

North End Pressure

Total Capital Projects Funds

Special Revenue:
Federal &State Grants:

Weed & Seed Carl Alves #2
Drug court Grant

AIP 30 Crack Repair Grant
Airport - AIP 26 EIS/EIR
AIP - 32 Airport Planning
Airport FEIS 2007

Total Federal & State Grants

Less
MWPAT
Interim Loan
08 &
Fund Deficit BAN’s O/S
5 $
3,865,467 3,031,944
761,957 1,800,000
111,383
5,835,384 8,958,000
465
5,502,879 6,414,971
11,101,897 12,470,000
300,298
8,384,922 8,500,000
1,508,140 4,650,000
$ 37,372,792 $ 45824915
5 25,000 $
7
9,784
1,705
5,581
2.950
45,027

Net Deficit

$
833,523 **

111,383 *

465 *

300,298 k4=

$ 1,245,669

$ 25,000 ***
7 %
9,784 *
1,705 *
5,581 *

2,950 *

— 45,027
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

June 30, 2007
NOTE 13: Fund Deficit (Continued)
MWPAT
Interim Loan
08 &
Other Special Revenue: Fund Deficit BAN's O/S - _Net Deficit
Revolving:
Special Services 3 6,536 $ $ 6,536 *
Total Revolving 6,536 6,536
Total Special Revenue 51,563 51,563
Permanent Trust Funds
Kempton Lost Books b $ $
Total Permanent Funds $ $ $
Total Fund Deficits $ 37.424.355 § 45824915 § 1,297,232
* The deficit will require a fiture administrative plan to fund this deficit and eliminate.
* The deficit will be eliminated by future bond issuance.

ook The deficit will be eliminated by reimbursements from third parties.

*#¥*  The deficit will require a future match during the grant period to fund the deficit and eliminate it.
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
June 30, 2007

NOTE 14: Restatement

In some instances beginning fund balance/net assets have been restated as a result of adjustments made to correct or reclassify prior year balances.

Such adjustments, summarized by fund type are as follows:

Governmental Funds
Non-Major Governmental Funds

Special
General Fund Wastewater Revenue

Beginning balance, July 1, 2006 $ 25,765,443 $ 4,920,912 $ 8,780,134
Correct tax possessions balance ( 147,640)
To correct inventory balance 56,437 15,034
To correct Due to Commonwealth -

Recreation Start Up grant ( 903)
To correct cash balance 27,863
To correct other liabilities { 14,937) '
To correct boat excise receivables ( 6,083)
To transfer purchasing revolving to special revenue revolving 35,668
To correct expenses that should have been

charged to special revenue 55,952 ( 55952)
Rounding 2
Beginning balance, July 1, 2006, restated $  25673,755 $ 4977349 % ' 8,780,826
Proprietary Funds.

Internal
Water Airport Service

Beginning balance, July 1, 2006 $ 3,634,260 $ 1,382,321 $ 1,146,847
To transfer purchase revolving to special revenue revolving ( 35,668)
To correct airport fixed assets 974,732
To correct accumulated depreciation 36,161 { 367,965)
To correct inventory balance 269,579
To temove infrastructure and related depreciation ( 15,441;275)
To add corrected infrastructure in progress | 6,225,034
To add corrected infrastructure and accumulated depreciation 34,343,152
Rounding - ( 1)
Beginning balance, July 1, 2006, restated $ 29,066,910 $ 1989088 3 1,111,179
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

NOTE 14: Restatement (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

June 30, 2007

The following were the restatements that occurred at the Government-Wide Level. This includes the adjustments above plus

additional adjustments.

Beginning balance, July 1, 2006

Restatements, per above

To correct accounts payable and accrued expenses
To correct prepaid expenses

To correct buildings and improvements

To cotrect land

To correct construction in progress

To correct accumulated depreciation

To remove infrastructure ans related depreciation
To add corrected infrastructure in progress

To add corrected infrastructure and
accumulated depreciation

To adjust medical withholdings to actual

To correct closure ans post-closure liabilities
To correct deposits held liability for NBRA
Rounding

Beginning balance, July 1, 2006, restated

Component Units
Governmental Business-Type Refuse Non-Major
Activities Activities District Component Units

$ 181,649,312 $ 5,016,581 $19,939,613 § 14,166,317
(‘ 70,227) 26,039,417
( 61,843)
( 546)
208,748
22,395
( 2,534,304)
4,668,914 (38,459
( 147,374,339)
12,422,874
25,125,214
(  3.221)
( 301,433)
( 70,000)
L 1) _ ( 2)
$ 74,118.,586 $ 31,055,998 $ 19,596,500 $ 14,033,926
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Required Supplementary Information

Notes to Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures/Expenses and Changes
" in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis

June 30, 2007

Budgetary - GAAP Reporting Reconciliation

The accompanying Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures or Expenses - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis) - General
Fund, Water and Airport Enterprise Funds and Wastewater Treatment Plant Special Revenue Fund are presented on the budgetary basis to
provide a meaningful comparison of actual results with the budget. The major difference between the budgetary basis and the Generally
Accepied Accounting Principles ("GAAP") basis are that:

A) Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budgetary basis) as opposed to when susceptible to accrual (GAAP basis), except for
real estate and personal property taxes which are recorded when committed;

B}  Expenditures/expenses are recorded when paid in cash (budgetary basis) as opposed to when liability is incurred (GAAP basis);
C}  Encumbrances are reported as expenditures/expenses (budgetary basis) as opposed to a reservation of fund balance (GAAP basis).

Therefore, timing, perspective, and entity differences in the excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources of financial resources for the year
ended June 30, 2007 are as follows;

Goyernment Funds Enterprise Funds
General Special Revenue
Fund Wastewater-Operating Water Airport
Revenues and other financing sources:

GAAP Basis $ 270,636,921 $ 16,837,393 $ 8,392,693 $ 734,519
Adjustments:

Increase in real estate and personal

property taxes to full accrual ( 1,538,513}

(Increase) decrease in 60 day accrual ( 452,874)

Gain on sate of tax possessions 31,623

Unbudgeted MTRB on-behalf payments {20,881,189)

Reversal of deferred revenue ( 163,48)

Unbudgeted MWPAT subsidy payments ( 200,076)

Change in allowance for receivables 910 { 7,292)

Unbudgeted contribution fo purchase easement (395,000

Rounding { 2)
Budgetary Basis $ 247,795,966 $ 16,837.393 $ 7635479 § 727,227

Expenditures and other financing uses:

GAAP Basis $ 270,653,731 § 16,235,622 $ 7,208,451 § 810,381
Adjustments:

Principal paid on capital leases ' 56,232

Unbudgeted MTRB on-behalf payments { 20,881,189) '

Budgeted appropriation deficit 148,848

Change in compensated absences ( 12,852) ( 3,659)

Additions to capital assets 734,575 23,516

Depreciation expense { 1,612,420) ( 77,295)

Change in accrued interest 11,610

Unbudgeted MWPAT subsidy payments { 200,076)

Principal paid on long term debt 710,801

Rounding 2 1 ( 1)
Budgetary basis $ 249,772,544 $ 16384470 $ 6896322 § 752,942

See accompanying independent auditors” report
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Required Supplementary information

Notes to Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures/Expenses and Changes
in Fund Balance - budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis (Continued)

June 30, 2007

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

The legal level of control for which expenditures can not exceed appropriation is at the category level within a
department (i.e., salaries, charges and services; supplies and materials; capital outlay; and debt service.

For the year ended June 30, 2007, expenditures exceeded the budget in the following fund:

Category Excess

General Fund:

Debt $ 74,289
Licensing 2
Clerk of Committee 32
School 1,082
Traffic 151
Zoo _ 4319

—_19.875

Enterprise - Airport -
Revenue deficit 21.453
Total Appropriation Deficits $ 101,328

See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
- Required Supplementary Information
Contributory Retirement System
Schedule of Funding Progress

December 31, 2006

(UNAUDITED)

Actuarial Accrued

Actuarial Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded UAALasa
Valuation Reporting Value of Individual (Overfunded) Funded Covered Percentage of
Date Year Assets Entry Ape AAL (UAAL) _ Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

01/01/94 1993 84,143,582 189,485,031 105,341,449  44% 47,428,221 ) 222%
01/01/94 1994 84,143,582 189,485,031 105,341,449  44% 60,048,850 175%
01/01/94 1995 84,143,582 189,485,031 105,341,449  44% 59,995,153 176%
01/01/94 1996 84,143,582 189,485,031 105,341,449  44% 57,638,616 183%
01/01/98 1997 133,140,386 248,033,340 114,892.954  54% 63,312,483 181%
01/01/98 1098 133,140,386 248,033,340 114,892,954  34% 57,639,014 195%
01/01/98 1959 133,140,386 248,033,340 114,892,954  54% 65,000,000% 177%
01/01/98 2000 133,140,386 248,033,340 114,892,954  34% 68,936,441 167%
01/01/01 2001 157,129,409 305,813,631 148,684,222 51% 75,089,435 198%
01/01/01 2002 157,129,409 305,813,631 148,684,222  51% 72,843,213 204%
01/01/01 2003 157,129,409 305,813,631 148,684,222  51% 82,981,340 179%
01/01/04 2004 175,663,857 380,950,456 205,286,599  46% 75,414,151 272%
01/01/04 2005 175,663,857 . 380,950,456 205,286,599  46% . 82,821,749 248%
01/01/06 2006 192,032,773 416,761,645 224728872 46% 87,993,734 255%
01/01/07 2007 210,446,468 469,061,751 258,615,283  45% 717,004,701 336%

Isolated analysis of the dollar amounts of net assets available for benefits, actuarial accrued liability, and unfunded actuarial
accrued liability can be misleading. Expressing the net assets available for benefits as a percentage of the actuarial acerued
liability provided one indication of the Plans' funding status on a going-concern basis. Analysis of this percentage over time
indicates whether the system is becoming financially stronger or weaker. Generally, the greater this percentage, the stronger the
Plan. Trends in unfunded actuarial acerued liability and annual covered payroll are both affected by inflation. Expressing the
unfunded actuarial accrued liability as a percentage of annual covered payroll approximately adjusts for the effects of inflation
and aids in the analysis of the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Generally, the smaller
this percentage, the stronger the Plans.

Note:  Actuarial valuations are only performed every three years. Accordingly, the information presented above is not
comparative between years,

*EBstimated

See accompanying independent auditors” report
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Required Supplementary Information
Contributory Retirement System
Schedule of Employer Contributions

December 31, 2006

(UNAUDITED)
Year Ended Annuat Required Year Ended Actual Percentage
June 30 Contributions December 31 Contributions _Contributed
1994 $ 12,368,255 1993 $ 11,991,216 97%
1995 10,930,599 1994 11,610,801 106%
1996 11,430,599 1995 11,344,309 99%
1997 10,833,227 1996 11,817,662 109%
1998 12,134,738 1997 12,652,023 104%
1999 10,717,334 1998 11,560,776 108%
2000 11,089,000 1699 11,089,000 100%
2001 11,474,000 2000 11,474,000 100%
2002 11,873,000 2001 11,873,000 100%
2003 _ 14,336,000 2002 14,345,564 100%
2004 . 14,819,118 2003 14,569,050 98%
2005 16,148,800 2004 15,470,688 96%
2006 20,814,000 2005 18,288,018 88%
2007 18,848,697 2006 18,848,697 100%

Although annual required contributions are calculated on a fiscal year basis, the City of New Bedford Contributory Retirement
System reports on a calendar year basis, therefore, some disparity may exist between required contributions and actual
contributions due to this timing difference.

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial valuations at the dates
indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows.

The amount of the total actuarial accrued liability is based on a standardized measurement, The standardized measurement is the
actuarial present value of credited projected benefits. This pension valuation method reflects the present value of estimated
pension benefits that will be paid in future years as a result of employee services performed to date and is adjusted for the effects
of projected salary increases. The standardized measurement of the actuarial accrued liability is intended to enable users of the
financial statements to (a) assess the Plans' funding status on a going-concern basis, (b) assess progress made in accumulating
sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and (¢) make comparisons among employers.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Required Supplementary Information
Contributory Retirement System
Schedule of Employer Confributions (Continued)

December 31, 2006

A variety of significant actuarial assumptions are used to determine the standardized measure of the pension benefit obligation.
These assumptions are summarized below:

] The actuarial .cost method used to determine liabilities and costs and to project future funding requirements
is known as the Individual Entry Age Normal Cost Method. Under this method, the annual normal cost of the
system is determined as the total of each member's level percentage of payroll necessary to fund all benefits
expected to be paid if such percentage of each member's pay was and will be contributed from entry into the
system until retirement, death or termination of employment. The actuarial ligbility on the valuation date is
calculated as the amount which would be on hand if all prior normal costs had been fully funded at that date.
The unfunded actuarial liability is the actuarial lability less the assets.

] Actuarial value of assets is market value.

. Mortality is assumed to be in accordance with the RP-2000 Mortality Table, with ages set forward two years
for all disabled members.

] Ten percent of assumed deaths represent "in line of duty" deaths.

L] Investment return on current assets and future contributions is assumed to be at the rate of 8.25% per year,
compounded annually. This return includes interest, dividends and realized and unrealized gains.

. Salaries, including longevity, were assumed to increase 5.0% per year for each member.
. Cost-of-living increases have been assumed to be 3% of the lesser of the pension amount and $12,000 per year,
L] - Rates of disablement are assumed to occur in accordance with a study conducted by PERAC with rates ranging

from .01% to 1.25%.

L] It is assumed that 55% of all disabilities are occupational for Group 1 and 2 members and that 90% of
disabilities are occupational for Group 4 members.

. Rates of turnover (termination of employment before becoming eligible for retirement) are in accordance with
a study conducted by PERAC with rates ranging from .0% to 1.50%.

L] Retirement rates were assumed to range from 1% to 100% for various ages, positions within the government
and genders.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the Plan was prepared as of January 1, 2007.

No changes in actuarial assumptions or benefit provisions that would significantly affect the valuation of the actuarial accrued
Hability occurred during 2007.

See accompanying-independent auditors’ report

78



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Major Governmental Funds - Wastewater

ASSETS

Cash, unrestricted

Cash, restricted

User charges receivable

Special assessments receivable

Accrued interest

Other receivables

Inventory

Due from other funds

Special assessments receivable - non-current

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Warrants payable
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Due to other funds

Total liabilities
Fund balances:
Reserved/designated
Reserved for inventory
Unreserved

Total fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balances

See accompanying independent auditors’ report

Supplementary Information

Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2007

Special Debt

Operating Projects Service Total
8 397,712) $ $ $(  397,712)
5,376,730 1,326,263 2,894 827 9,597,820
1,542,718 1,542,718
( 119,710) { 119,710)
8,730 8,730
63,923 63,923
56,437 56,437
14,795 20 11,500 26,315
120,902 120,902
$§ 6,658,083 $§ 1,326,283 $ 2915057 $ 10.899.423
b 205,270 $ $ $ 205,270
458,156 458,156
1,607,203 1,607,203
2975911 9.801 14,795 3,000,507
5.246.540 9.801 14,795 5,271,136
1,503,901 2,900,262 4,404,163
56,437 56,437
( 148.793) 1,316,482 1,167,687
1,411,543 1,316,482 2,900,262 5,628,287
$ 6,658,083 $ 1326283 $ 2.915,057 $ 10,899,423
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Revenues:;
Utility usage charges
Intergovernmental revenues

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Supplementary Information

Major Governmental Funds - Wastewater

Combining Statement of Revenues and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Year Ended June 30, 2007

Operating

$ 15,770,943

Special
Projects

Investment income 338,119 55,246
Other 639.206
Total revenues 16,748,268 55,246
Expenditures:
Salaries 1,196,665
Charges and services 9,294,133
Supplies and materials 395,487
Capital outlay 85,566 6,222
Debt service 885,899
Total expenditures 11,857,750 6,222
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 4,890,518 49,024
Other financing sources and (uses) (_4.288.744)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures and other uses 601,774 49,024
Fund balance - July 1, 2006, restated 809,769 1.267.458
Fund balance - June 30, 2007 $ 1411543 $1.316482

See accompanying independent auditors’ report

Debt

Service Total
$ $ 15,770,943
6,628,779 6,628,779
393,365
639.206
6,628,779 23,432,293
1,196,665
9,294,133
395,487
91,788
10,991,511 11.877.410
10,991,511 22.855,483
( 4,362,732) 576,810
4,362,872 74,128
140 650,938
2,900,122 4,977,349
$ 2900262 § 5.628,287



Beginning balance

Transfers in/receipts

Transfers out/
disbursements

Ending balance

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Supplementary Information

Wastewater Reserved Cash Account Activity

See accompanying independent auditors’ report

June 30, 2007
Renewal &
Revenue Operating Debt Replacement
Reserve Operating Service Reserve Special
Fund Fund Fund Fund Projects Total

b 46,869 $ 2212729 § 2,547,006 $ 1497045 $1,358996 $ 7.662,645

15,566,488 129,287 4,769,788 83,452 505,597 21,054,612

13.970,728 118814 4413237 76.596 538,246 19,110,621
§ 1642629 $ 2230202 § 2903557 § 1503901 §1.326347 $ 9606636
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ASSETS

Cash and investments, unrestricted
Receivables, net:
Accrued interest
Federal and state receivable
Loans receivable
Receivable, other
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Inventories
Land inventory

Total assets

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Supplementary Information
Non Major Governmental Funds
Permanent Funds
Combining Balance Sheet (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2007
Permanent
Funds

Nonexpendable  Expendable
Trusts Trusts Subtotal

$ 9,913,614 $ 428115 $10,341,729

49,868 49,868

Total
Non Major

Governmental

Funds

$ 26,251,944

3,387
9,137,137
17,387,828
474,476
269,079
4915216
15,034
246,918

$ 9,963,482 $ 428115 §$10,391,597

$ 58,701,019

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Warrants payable 5 $ $ § 454,746
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 14,782 14,782 4,804,296
Retainage payable 244,040
Bonds anticipation notes payable . 39,409,944
Interitn loan payable 3,388 3,388 6,414,971
Due to other funds 123,872
Due to other governments 79,287
Other liabilities 19,796
Deferred revenue 24,035,591
Total liabilities b 18,170 by $ 18,170 § 75,646,543
Fund balance:
Reserved for:
Non expendable bequests 5,102,411 5,102,411 5,102,411
Undesignated, reported in nonmajer:
Special revenue funds 9,141,847
Capital project funds { 36,460,798)
Permanent funds 4.842.901 428.115 5,271,016 5,271,016
Total fund balance 9,945,312 428,115 _10,373.427 {_16,945,524)

Total liabilities and fund balances

§ 9,963,482 $ 428115 $10,391,597

See accompanying independent auditors’ report

$ 58,701,019



Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Revenues:

Intergovernmental - operating
Intergovernmental - capital
Investment income

Other excise

Fines and penalties

Charges for services

Other income

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Genetal government
Public safety
Public works
Education

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Supplementary Information
Non Major Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Community and economic development

Health and human services
Culture and recreation
Municipal airport
Debt service:

Principal

Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers between funds

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other sources over

expenditures and other uses

Fund balance (deficit), July 1, 2006,
as restated

Fund balance (deficit), June 30, 2007

Reserve
Highway For
Improvements Revolving  Appropriation Donations
$ 2444877 3% 8373,1i2 § $ 58,198
50,468 15,453
4,273 42,703 5,595
7,637
2,110
1,718,146 69,305
6,326
2,444,877 10,162,072 112,008 79.246
324,961 640 55,036
75,602 1,167
2,459,911 4,709
9,510,686
56,374 822
178,580 20,215
2,458,911 10,150,912 604 17,240
( " 15,034) 11,160 111,368 2,006
( 88,812y [ 51.671) 17,300
( 15,034) (  77,652) 59,697 19,306
15,034 4,651,750 1,172,386 134,610
$ $ 4574098 § 1.232.083 153,916

See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Supplementary Information

Non Major Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Continued)

Revenues:

Intergovernmental - operating
Intergovernmental - capital
Investment income

Other excise

Fines and penalties

Charges for services

Other income

Total revenues

Expenditures:

General government
‘Public safety
Public works
Education
Community and econormic development
Health and human services
Culture and recreation
Municipal airport
Debt service:

Principal

Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

- Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers between funds

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other sources over

expenditures and other uses

Fund balance (deficit), July 1, 2006,
as restated

Fund balance (deficit), June 30, 2007

See accompanying independent auditors’ report

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Federal/State School Community

Grants Grants Development _Subtotals

$ 2,950,774 $£18,479951 $ 9,431,707 $ 41,738,619

1,982,342 199,137 2,247,400

91,615 144,186

7,637

2,110

640,793 2,428,244

42,542 500 462,862 512,230

5,616.451 18.679.588 9,986,184 47,080,426

690,622 1,071,259

1,710,731 1,787,500

1,230,070 3,694,690

18,737,894 28,248,580

33,262 9,754,782 9,788,044

655,725 712,921

201,209 400,004

887,892 887.892

100,000 100,000

3,509,511 18,737,894 9,754,782 46,690,890

106,940 ( 58,306} 231,402 389,536
94,668 { 28.515)

201,608 ( 58,306) 231,402 361,021

1,367,738 582,858 $56.450 8,780,826

$ 1569346 § 524,552 % 1,087,852 $ 9141847

90



16

§ £09°9¢ S
TOSTIET

(L6376 )
(L68 F6 )

L68F6

LE8YE
$ $ 3

UOUINGSU0)) 0SS puog IMSS puog
100428 TONBAOUR] duy Suipymg
1[PA3500Y Lrexqry

poday sioypre juspuadspur Suiuedwosse sog

L08 $ S 150°¢ 5
SHOLOT . 180°€ (L06°LT }
(gezoor ) LO6'LT
LOG'LT
LO6°LT
(82901  }
8£7°901
81
006°EL
0ZeTE
L3 $ $ $
2055] puoy AEIOTTY “SuiAedayg WRIWopuoc)
Jamdmby 0os) 19308

LO0T “0€ dun[ papud feaX o 104

(penunuUOD) se0UBRE PUN,] U $25URYD) PR sarmpuadyy “SanusAy JO JUSWAIRLS SUTUIC)

spun spafoxd penden
SPUMNJ [EIUSIILISAOL) I[N UON

noneuoyuy Arejuswayddng

SLIISNHDVSSVIA ‘@IOAqIT MAN 0 A1ID

LOOT “0€ 3unf (HOgap) saouefeq pung

pa1eIsalr Se ‘9007 ‘1 Ammf
“(Moyyop) seoueeq pun

sasn Ioyo pire sarmrpusdxa
ISA0 $32IN0S 120 pUe
$ANUBAI JO (ADUSISIFapP) SSo0X]

(so5n) S304M0S SUICURTLY INROC [e10]

spaaood puog
SPUTY U33M13] SIFSURL],
:(5950) 520MOS SUICTRUL IO

samypuadxa
ISAC INTIAI JO (AOUDIOLAP) SS20XT]

sampuadxs [e10],

OB PUE M)
Juado]aAsD OIEOUOYY PU ANINIIIO.)
Honesnpy
SIMPONOSELUL Jqu]
Ajages onqng
JISUIUIAA0S [RISUSD)

ssamypuadxg

SaNUAAS FR10],

2RO

SWOOUT MISUISIAT]

Eude)) -RIusunus A0S
SaMUAATY



[£3)

podas s10)1pne JUapuadapul SHAURAWIOIZE 305

(Zot'Co8E )§
Teorelee )

96Z°8HF 61

LL §

S LOOT “0¢ 2unf “(1104ap) seoueieq pumy

(88715611 )

S9C°IS6'TT

000°81%'y

(000000 pareIsas se ‘900¢ °1 Ay

“(noyap) seoueleq pung
000°000° S3SN 1530 pue saImrpuadxa
J2A0 SOOINOS IDTIO0 PUE
SANUIAAL JO (ADHRIIISP) $599%XH

000000 (sosn) S25MES [OTRUL IO [BI0L

00081F ¥

spasooad puog
SpUNY U25/13q SIASURL]
:(sesn) seomos Suueuy LN

000°000°C

96T 8¥t61

SO EECL

sarmrpuadxs
I3A0 SMUSARI JO (Adustogap) sssoxyg

597188

155761

saIpuadxs 101

LS9'718°8

185761

TO[RAIO0] PUR I[N
ydo[sA3p SIEIOU0IS PUB ANUNUIIOD
uonenpyg
IMONNSEIUL OqNg
Ayages oHqng
JUSIIWIZAOS [RISUSL)

somyiptiadxy

069°1¢ ) (E3€°TIT  )S § (L56T19L
(01€°€1T (L8S905 ) (68€9071T
000°S+T FOT'S6E ZEY Py
000°5+T L8S'90S SS8°SLY
000°S+C 000700T
L8S790E CS8°SLY
(e8CTIT ) (ETF IE ]
€Tr it
£THIE
(EBETIT
(3111}
£ $ $
puog SUISpaI(] TOQISINDOY EX LT g)
proy Ioany Z aseqd pue] ypueY
JOQICH

£6629T 8T

9Tl essL

SONUSADI [RI0L

€$6'797°8C §

SITESS’L §

S
W

£0OT "0€ SuUn[ papud Iea 34 10

spung palorg Eaden

SPUT] [RIUSHIWISAOL) JOfey] UON

uoeuLIof Arymuniddng

S
TIpUTOLION

SLIASOAHDVSSVIA ‘@HOACTE MAN H0 ALLD

RO

SUWIOHUL JUSURSIAU]

$ esede)) -[ejuaumusA0S oy
SINUAY

INSS] PUOT
ISEYIIRY
Suipfing

(penunuon) ssoueeg pung W saSuey) pue sarmipusdxd ‘SsnUASY JO JUSNEIS SUrUIque)



yodar sionpne uapuadapur SwANedEE0IIe 295

(59% )3 3 § $ 0zsc9 ) (+8ESERS )3 122019 § LOOT “OF STN{ (110Lap) SaoUR[Rq pung
(CET6LET ) @F15L6L ) (€sv98L ) (0ST'T6L ) (6£8°980F ) (QOTEIT ) QST EETT © Pa1eISal S “500T T AIn[
“(oErop) s30TeTeq PUTLY
0L9BLET vISLEL £51°98L 0STT6L 65L6p1'y (gL1°220°€ ) (6r6ves ) $95T AP0 PUE SammIpuadxs
IDAO S30INOS IO PUR

SINUIA JO (ADUSINJIP) 5520XT

0L L8E L IS L6L £57°98L 0ST'I6L 0000009 (sosn) $301n0s SWIOTRWY 1010 FIOL
00078LET 000°L6L 006982 0007064 00070009 spesooxd puog
0LF'6 1489 1384 0sT’1 SPUNJ US3439q SISISTRAT,
:($95T) $301R05 FUIOUPLL M)
50581 ) ®ITTWE ) (6T6¥es ) semspuadxo
I9A0 SNUIAL JO (AoUsIoyap) ssa0xy
(00878 ) ’ 17970881 SLLTOLE 676 VTS samypuadxs e10],
UOTES1231 PUR 2NN
1w dopAap STWOU0Y3 PUR AJTUNLLIO.)
0088 uonelnpy
199°058°1 QLLTOL'E 6T6'FTS SIMOTLYSEHUL QLT
Kyoyes aT[qng
VIFOTIZACS [BIDUAD)
:samypuadxg
8657089 SONUIASI [BI0 L,
BYO
BSOS JUSIISIAT]
$ $ $ $ g 265089 § $ Tende]) -[eJUSTIIIA0SIU]
SAMIASY
ESTEUED R ATe)uatary PSETE e AT WA SUIABJ HoNeIEdos HoneI8das
eqdwe) oIy fo0Ig MOSHIAL Pang IIMIG JIIMIG
PRQEZIEY 144 INEMANSEAL

L00T “0£ ounf papud Tesx 3t 104
(panunuo))} SsoUBTRd pUnJ Ul SsEuRY PUR SAIMIPUadXT ‘Sanunasy JO JUSWITEIS SUrnquio))
spund 1slo1q euded
spun,j EE.EEgoO Iofey mON
con.mE..BE Areyuswaddng

SLLASNHDVSSVIA ‘TH0ACTT MAN J0 ALID



¥6

(geT00t )%

£08'vl $

8L $

wodar s1oypne juapuadapur Suriuedwose 924

s £

(Z62°TOTTL S

(6L8°705°S )8 LOOT “0€ aum( (oyap) saouereq pung

6o0’61E )

108°81

LTV ELT

($79'851 )

(609729 )

108°5LT

00€’sTy

(6T 1S ) (Fo07CZe ) (6109066

S6T1S ¥O0°7TE (BL8'c61°r )

$6T1S ¥90°TZE

00geTy

(EE86rET ) PeBIsal se ‘9007 T ATaf

“(aroyyop) saoueleq pung
(5p0'esT'y ) 5950 IO0 PUB SaIMIpuadxs
IIA0 S32IN0S B[O pUe
SONUSARSI JO (ADUSIOIIP) SS90Xg

(s9s1) S29INOS SUIDURULY JAO Te0 ]

000°0z¢
6TTS $90°T

spasaoxd puog
SPUTJ U3aM39q SISFSTRIT
:($28T) 530.MOS SUIOUBUL] INBQ

108781

(#T9°8ST )

(66L°LyT )}

samupuadxa
ISA0 SNUIAIE JO (ADU191aP) S590xg

¥79851

664" LY

BLRG6TL

PO ESL 7 szargrpuadxs 10,

¥T9°851

66L°LY1

818611

GOTBAINAI DU MM
yustdo[sAsp STHIOUO0? PUER AJIURLITIO.)
uonesnpy
amonnsequr olqnd
Kares ongng
JNSUMLIOACS [RINUSD)
:samgrpuadxy

SP0°EST Y

108781

SanuaAal [BJo]

10881

aloiyg
J0JEQRIUY

704 SaarY
W)
PUy 1S

SUTETA
UOISSTRISUBL]Y,
IEAN

HEg S ST T
IpIIARY sABAI(

ELTi EY
peopey

L00T “0€ 3un{ papug JesX 3 104

BRO

SUIOIUT JUSUNSIAU]

$ feuden) -fepouruEs A0S U]
1SANUAAYY

SHIElY
INEM

(panunuo)) seouefeq pUnJ UI S98URY) PUR saIpuadXy ‘SonusAsy JO JUSWeIRlS SUUIqUo )

spunj waforg peude)
Spun.g [EIUMUTIACL Iofej] UON

uoneuEoyy] Arjuawaddag

SLLISNHOVSSYIA ‘CUO4aFg MIN 40 ALID



1)

nodar s1oypne juspuadepul Surdueduicoss 39§

(86L709%9¢ )$ (0PI R0ST)S #OTZL % 895°€9 3 9798 $ 3 g (TZ6 V858 )% 3
0TF€09°35 ) €21 6L L] Si16 0766 (SIS7T (506798 )

TI9TPITE OF1°805°1) (616951 ) (681 ) (0z6'6 ) $LETT (s10'ze )

18LYFT81 (687 } SL6TT

O0TLSE LI

13¥°L88 (68t ) SLS'TT

TE8 68 €1 (OFT805T) 1616951 (0Z6'6 )] @107z )

1681082 OFT 805 T 00091 0766 9L 6l S1Z611

PET6IT 91Z'611

800°€F8°8 ,

6TELOREI 0P1°805T 000701 066 9561

0ZEZE

TZL 6699 130° SCEE61 007 L6

(78576 }

180° 180° 00T°L6

ETTLRLIE g $ $ $ $ 95 61 $ $ g

Te103qng 2INSSALY JIWBAI] J3EIED) aondnnsEoe)) Apmg Q1 ANoY qe] 55 [PURLIdT, AXLI3g
puyq az Sunjreg i AesIxey daedsary-reuoiSay g ¥e0
LN INBMIASEN LT v g asenq DaH

LO0T “0f SUN[ papud IeaX 3R 104

(penuguony) ssoueeq pung w safuey) pue samypuadxy “$anusAy JO JUSWEIS SUTIqUIOD

spun waloig renden
SpUN, [EIUSUITISAOLD) JO[BIA] UON

uogeuLUo] Aruaua{ddng

SELASAHDVSSVIN ‘THOJIaId M3AN JO AX1D

LOOT 0 9Un[ “(Frogap) soueeq pung

PaTeLS3I SB “900T [ Alnf
“(royap) saotrereq pung

S9SN JNPO PUE saImIpuadxe
I3A0 $52IN0S Y0 pUE
SANU2AI JO (AoUarDiap) ssa0xy

(sosn) saoImnes SUIOURUY LSO [)0]

spasoord puog
Spury Usamiaq SIYSUBI]
:(s2sn) $201M0S SUIOURLL] 13RO

samgtpuadxe
I2A0 SNUSAAI JO (ACUIIDTAP) $590Xg

samyipuadxs (107,

GOLBRI031 PUE SIMMYD
yWotdoaAsp SMOT00S PUE AJIUTHITIO?)
nopeonpg
SIMATLRSEGUT Hqnd
A3opes o11qng
JUSUNEIOACS JEIotan

samyipuadxg

SOTUDASI [BI0L

B_PO

WO JUSULSIAUL

Eude?) -[EIUaULIACS IS1U]
SONUSASY



CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Supplementary Information
Non Major Governmental Funds

Permanent Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Contitued)

Year Ended June 30, 2007

Permanent Total
Funds Non Major
Nonexpendable Expendable Governmental
Trusts Trusts Subtotal Funds
Revenues:
Intergovernmental - operating $ $ b3 $ 77,748,044
Intergovernmental - capital ’ 3,030,279
Investment income 1,030,364 57,919 1,088,283 1,232,469
Other excise 7,637
Fines and forfeitures 2,110
Charges for services 2,428,244
Miscellaneous 131,195 3.345 134,540 554,188
Total revenues 1,161,559 61,264 1,222,823 85,002,971
Expenditures:
General government 104 104 1,071,363
Public safety 1,819,820
Education 4,068 4,068 37,095,656
Public works 17,502,019
Community and economic development 9,807,278
Health and human services 156,266 3,247 159,513 872,434
Municipal airport 887,892
Culture and recreation 151,379 14 151,393 551,397
Debt service:
Principal 100,000
Interest
Total expenditures 311,817 3,261 315,078 69,807,859
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures 849,742 58.003 907,745 15,195,112
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 959,938
Transfers cut { 250,000) { 250,000) ( 390,972)
Bond premiums
Bond proceeds 17,357,300
Total other financing sources (uses) (  250,000) (___250.000) 17,966,266
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other sources over
expenditures and other uses 599,742 58,003 657,745 33,161,378
Fund balance (deficit), July 1, 2006, restated 9.345.570 370,112 9,715,682 { 50.106.902)
Fund balance (deficit), June 30, 2006 $ 9945312 § 428115 $10.373.427 $( 16,945.524)

See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Supplementary Information

Private Purpose Trust Funds

Combinihg Balance Sheet
June 30, 2007
Elwyn G, Taylor
Campbell School
Assets
Cash and short-term investments § 9 $ 3,361
Investments 14,803
Total assets 3 14,812 3 3.361
Liabilities
Accounts payable
and accrued expenses 3 3 3.346
Total liabilities 3.346
Net Assets
Held in trust for pension benefits
and other purposes $ 14,812 $ 15

See accompanying independent auditors’ report

Total
$ 3,370
14,803
8 18,173
$ 3.346

3,346

14.827
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Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Revenues:
Investment income:
Dividends and interest

Net appreciation in fair value
of investments

Total revenue

Expenditures:

Education

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers from other funds

Total other financing sources (uses)
Change in net assets
Beginning fund balances

Ending fund balances

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Supplementary Information

Private Purpose Trust Funds

June 30, 2007

Elwyn G.
Campbell

b 826

738

1,564

320

320

1,244

13,568

b 14.812

See accompanying independent auditors® report

Taylor
School

$ 177

177

6.921

6,921

————rerrrr—— —

2,001

2,001
( 4,743)

4,758

Total

$ 1,003

738

1,741

7,241

7.241

2.001

———————

2,001
( 3,499}

18,326

$ 14,827
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GOB 2004 - Refund 1996
GOB 2004 - Refund 1995
Sewer Bonds

General Public Improvement
Federal Loan 1996 Series A
Federal Loan 1998 Series A
Federal Loan 2000 Series 6
Middle School, Public Imp
Federal Loan 2003 Series 8
Federal Loan 2003 Pool 9
HUD 108 -2003 -A

Federal Loan DW-02-13
Federal Loan DW-02-20
$11.434M GOB 2006
Federal Loan CW-04-28
Federal Loan CW-03-06
GOSQ Bond 2007

Federal Loan DW-01-13A

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS
Supplementary Information
General Long-Term Debt Account Group

Schedule of Long-Term Debt Maturities

Ten Years Ended June 30
Oufstanding
Balance
6/30/07 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
$ 5920000 $ 585,000 $ 595,000 $ 595,000 $ 605000 $ 610,000
4,885,000 605,000 610,000 580,000 580,000 585,000
2,435,000 150,000 160,000 170,000 175,000 185,000
5,435,000 770,000 775,000 390,000 390,000 390,000
8,770,000 1,490,000 1,390,000 1,285,000 1,165,000 1,035,000
104,980,000 3,135,000 3,345,000 3,565,000 3,805,000 4,085,000
4,942,482 135,129 139,495 144,008 148,850 155,000
39,575,000 2,140,000 2,220,000 2,310,000 2,405,000 2,500,000
669,101 32,955 34,103 35,006 35940 36,948
1,331,781 69,528 69,964 70,651 71,594 72,795
1,640,000 90,000 90,000 90,000 105,000 105,000
1,955,666 80,781 83,834 86,122 88,495 90,910
3,853,688 159,756 165,790 170,306 174,993 179,759
10,630,000 800,000 790,000 780,000 760,000 590,000
571,729 25,246 25,756 26,276 . 26,807 27,349
5,811,333 142,411 145,734 149,136 152,616 156,178
16,934,000 964,000 - 965,000 975,000 995,000 1,005,000
423,300 16,694 17.768 18.127 18,493 18.867
$220,769,080 $11.391,500 §11,622444 $ 11,439,632 $ 11,702,788 $ 11.827.806

See accompanying independent auditors’ report
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GOB 2006 - Refund 1996
GOB 2006 - Refund 1996
Sewer Bonds

General Public Improvement
Federal Loan 1996 Series A
Federal Loan 1998 Series A
Federal Loan 2000 Series 6
Middle School, Public Imp
Federal Loan 2003 Scries 8
Federal Loan 2003 Pool 9
HUD 108 -2003 -A

Federal Loan DW-02-13
Federal Loan DE-02-20
$11.434M GOB 2007
Federal Loan CW-04-28
Federal Loan CW-03-06
GOSQ Bond 2007

Federal Loan DW-0I-13A

CITY OF NEW BEDFORD, MASSACHUSETTS

Supplementary Information

General Long-Term Debt Account Group

Schedule of Long-Term Debt Maturities (Continued)

Ten Years Ended June 30

2013 2014 215
$ 565,000 $ 580,000 § 585,000
595,000 600,000 360,000
195,000 205,000 215,000
390,000 390,000 390,000
§90,000 730,000 515,000
4,390,000 4,710,000 5,085,000
160,000 165,000 170,000
2,605,000 2,715,000 2,835,000
37,798 39,019 40,715
74,959 77,290 80,000
105,000 105,000 105,000
93,415 97,068 160,041
184,705 191,918 197,786
590,000 590,000 585,000
27,901 28,465 29,040
159,823 163,554 167,371
1,025,000 1,045,000 1,060,000
19,248 19,637 20,034
$12,107.849 $12451,951 $12,539.987

See accompanying independent auditors® report

2016 2017
$ 595000  $ 605,000
370,000
225,000 240,000
390,000 390,000
270,000
5,490,000 5,920,000
180,000 185,000
2,955,000 3,085,000
82,412 44,108
80,000 85,000
105,000 105,000
105,000 110,000
204,888 214,883
585,000 555,000
29,627 30,225
171,277 175,275
1,080,000 1,105,000
20,438 20,851
$ 12898642  $ 12,870342
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